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Our Mission
UNCF envisions a nation where all Americans have equal access to a college
education that prepares them for rich intellectual lives, competitive and
ful�lling careers, engaged citizenship and service to our nation.

UNCF’s mission is to build a robust and nationally recognized pipeline of
underrepresented students who, because of UNCF support, become highly
quali�ed college graduates and to ensure that our network of member
institutions is a respected model of best practices in moving students to and
through college.

UNCF’s North Star is to increase the total annual number of African American
college graduates by focusing on activities that ensure more students are
college-ready, enroll in college and persist to graduation. This is done through
a three-pillar strategy:

• Positioning member institutions as a viable college option for students and
investing in institutional capacity to improve student outcomes.

• Creating transformational support programs to ensure that students are
enrolling and persisting through college completion.

• Building awareness of educational attainment and cultivating college-going
behaviors within the African American community.

 UNCF, Thurgood Marshall College

Fund and Partnership for Education

Advancement Announce Historic

Collaboration to Improve

Socioeconomic Outcomes for Black

Communities

 Ralph Lauren Corporation and The

Ralph Lauren Corporate Foundation

Help Light the Way for HBCUs

Students

•

•
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DIRECTORS’ LETTER

Our Momentum toward Growth
Continues

A Message from the Chair of the Board and the President and CEO

MILTON H. JONES, JR. AND DR. MICHAEL L. LOMAX

Dear Friend,

Welcome to UNCF’s 2023 �scal year Annual Report. We are thrilled to
report that UNCF had a record-breaking performance.

Our fundraising total gifts exceeded $360 million—a record for total
donations in a single �scal year in UNCF’s history.

Over the past three years, UNCF has raised more than $800 million to
support HBCUs and the students they serve through scholarships,
emergency student aid, scholarship endowments and capacity building for
UNCF-member institutions.

And over the last 10 years, we have awarded $1 billion in scholarships to
more than 100,000 students.



Undoubtedly the biggest news of �scal year 2023 was the Fidelity Scholars
Program, which you will learn more about in this annual report. On Jan. 17,
2023, UNCF received its largest single corporate gift in its history. Fidelity
Investments donated $190 million to UNCF to create a social impact
scholarship for the “mighty middle,” those students with 2.5 to 3.5 GPAs
who are not often highly recruited candidates for elite schools and
therefore wouldn’t otherwise bene�t from a program like this one.

Under the program, up to 2,500 underrepresented students of color in 11
states will receive full scholarships and wrap-around services needed to
ensure their success.

In this �scal year, UNCF’s Direct Response Program again showed its
extraordinary fundraising power and resilience by generating $13.67 million
from individual donors through our direct mail and online engines. This was
made possible by the generosity and steadfast support of 158,000
individual donors.

Thanks to this strong donor support and dedicated UNCF team, we
continue to deliver on our unwavering mission.

As we look ahead, we are determined more than ever to continue building a
robust and nationally recognized pipeline of African American students in
ways that help them become highly quali�ed graduates and leaders in our
society.

Yet, we still have a lot of work to do. Three record-setting years of
fundraising does not erase decades of societal struggle. Despite the
challenges facing our students and HBCUs in �scal year 2023, thanks to
you, our loyal supporters, partners and donors, UNCF remains steadfast.
This annual report highlights several of the amazing accomplishments we
have achieved with your help.

As you peruse this report, you’ll read stories that clearly demonstrate how
HBCUs fuel the American middle class and elevate the social mobility of
Black students, mostly �rst-generation and from low-income families.
Discover how UNCF is reimagining online education with HBCUv™, a
shared online platform where students, educators and sta� are enabled to
learn, develop and build community from anywhere. Once developed,
HBCUv™ will o�er best-in-class remote education, community
engagement and career pathways to students seeking an HBCU education.

Learn how we partnered with the Thurgood Marshall College Fund and
Blue Meridian Partners to launch a landmark collaboration to drive
tangible, long-term progress across HBCUs and impact the Black economy.



Called the “HBCU Transformation Project,” the �rst-of-its-kind
collaboration aims to increase HBCU sustainability, improve student
outcomes in retention and graduation rates, expand enrollment and
increase capacity building with faculty and sta�.

You can learn more about supporters like educator Dr. Blondean Y. Davis
who for decades has raised money to support the work of UNCF and
students of color to ful�ll their dreams of attending college.

Read stories about �nancial support UNCF received in �scal 2023 from
several of our corporate partners including Fidelity Investments, Blue
Meridian Partners, Ralph Lauren and The Gray Foundation.

And, we’re also featuring a story about a collaboration between UNCF and
renowned video game publisher EA Madden that created a scholarship
program supporting and empowering aspiring students interested in
pursuing careers in the gaming industry.

As you read these and other articles within this annual report, know that
the investment of your talent, time and treasure is greatly appreciated and
valued. We need your continued support to help us transform and fuel
HBCUs to develop the future generation of diverse, American college-
educated talent to lead us all to better futures.

Finally, whether you’ve invested in UNCF’s schools and students for years,
or this is the �rst time you’re considering joining us, let our years of success
inspire you to make our indelible motto, “A mind is a terrible thing to
waste”® , your own.

Sincerely,



IMPACT

Fidelity Investments Changes
the Landscape for Students of
Color via Largest Corporate Gi�
in UNCF’s History

F Y23 was quite an impactful year for UNCF—the organization
received its largest philanthropic corporate gift ever from Boston-

based �nancial services leader Fidelity Investments, launching the Fidelity
Scholars Program.

Part of its long-standing commitment to �nancial education and inclusion,
Fidelity donated $190 million to UNCF. The gift was part of its overall $250
million Invest in My Education (ME)℠  initiative. Launched in early 2023,
the social impact program was built by Fidelity and its philanthropic
partners and provides access to education and ongoing support to students
from underrepresented populations and historically underserved
communities who have faced systemic barriers and challenges to economic
mobility. It intends to reach 50,000 students across �ve years.

https://www.fidelity.com/about-fidelity/invest-in-my-education-me


“Invest in My Education upholds Fidelity’s most fundamental value—to
empower individuals to strengthen and secure their �nancial futures,” said
Pamela Everhart, head of regional public a�airs and community relations,
Fidelity Investments. “By taking a unique, long-term and holistic approach,
Invest in My Education has the potential to support economic mobility for
up to 50,000 students over the next �ve years—and that is really just the
beginning.”

To inform the work and connect resources with the students and
communities most in need, Fidelity engaged several strategic partners
including UNCF.

“This is an incredibly generous gift from Fidelity Investments,” said Dr.
Michael L. Lomax, president and CEO, UNCF. “We are delighted to partner
with a premier global �nancial services company to do this work. The
Fidelity Scholars Program is exemplary, innovative and demonstrates the
company’s commitment to provide equal educational opportunities for low-
income and underrepresented students who do not have the advantages of
other students.”

The program is consistent with UNCF’s mission as the nation’s largest
private scholarship provider to students of color, administering an array of
small and large scholarships that have helped more than 500,000 students
to earn college degrees with the support of institutional philanthropic
partners and individual donors.



“Fidelity’s extraordinary gift will encourage other corporate leaders to get
involved and show their commitment for the education of bright, promising
student scholars who simply need the �nancial resources and support
services to achieve their college and career aspirations,” said Milton H.
Jones, Jr., chairman, UNCF Board of Directors.

The Fidelity Scholars Program features annually renewable, need-based,
last-dollar scholarships with comprehensive wrap-around support services
for eligible students.

“The design of this program is speci�cally geared to the mighty-middle,
students with 2.5 to 3.5 grade point averages, who are often overlooked for
scholarship opportunities and need signi�cant �nancial support,” noted
Larry Gri�th, executive vice president, programs and student services,
UNCF. “This is not a transactional program, but a transformational program
giving striving achievers a substantive scholarship and a comprehensive set
of services based on research and best practices that UNCF has developed
over the last 79 years.”

Student participants must pursue a bachelor’s or an associate degree at an
accredited not-for-pro�t, four-year or two-year college or university,
(including minority serving institutions (MSIs) and historically Black
colleges and universities (HBCU)s, or a not-for-pro�t certi�cate program
within the state of their residence. The program also covers the cost of
certain certi�cate and training programs.



“As a UNCF-HBCU president, I am con�dent that this program will have
major impact on HBCUs and minority-serving institutions of higher
education,” said George T. French, Jr., Ph.D., president of UNCF-member
Clark Atlanta University and chair of UNCF’s member presidents. “The
participating colleges and universities include HBCUs, state-funded, small
private schools and community colleges that do the heavy lifting, but don’t
often have the �nancial resources to support their students.”

In September 2023, the Fidelity Scholars Program hosted orientation
sessions for students in Massachusetts, Texas and North Carolina for the
200 students that comprised the inaugural class of scholars. The agenda
included program expectations, mentoring, leadership, �nancial aid and
health and wellness workshops. Students also met and interacted with their
Fidelity mentors and college success coaches.

In the fall of 2023, the program expanded to Florida, New Jersey, New
Mexico and Washington, DC. Over the next �ve years, the Fidelity Scholars
Program will provide funding and support for more than 2,500 talented
students in areas where Fidelity has a signi�cant presence across the
country.

“Fidelity Investments is providing an unparalleled opportunity for some of
the most deserving, overlooked and vulnerable students to graduate with
little to no college debt,” said Paulette Jackson, senior vice president,
national development and operations, UNCF.



This philanthropic milestone is a sterling example of how UNCF and its
corporate partners are helping to achieve better futures for historically
underrepresented and underserved students.



IMPACT

Wakanda Forever!!! HBCUs
Forever!!!

S ometimes you can’t see the forest for the trees. How many times
have we heard that adage? The world was introduced to the

mythical country Wakanda in the original “Black Panther” movie, starring
award-winning actor and Howard University alum, Chadwick Boseman.

Hidden deep in the forest, this isolated Third World country was only
known by its people; and behold, this isolated African nation is a
technologically advanced wonder. Technology so superior, the people of
Wakanda believed they needed to protect it from the rest of the world.

And now with the release of the “Black Panther: Wakanda Forever” movie,
the people of Wakanda have decided to share their advanced technology
with people outside of their country. They are on the precipice of telling the
world who they are, why they matter and why everyone else should pay
attention to them.

That is precisely the moment historically Black colleges and universities
(HBCUs) �nd themselves in today.



There were the murders of George Floyd and Breonna Taylor in 2020, the
racial and social unrest that followed and tragedies that befell so many
others—but we still are inspired by their memories. People began looking
beyond the trees and started viewing HBCUs in a di�erent manner.

However, that’s not new to those of us who are HBCU alums and advocates
for these exceptional institutions.

Even when others, even those in our community, approached HBCUs from a
de�cit narrative and thought only state �agships and Ivy Leagues had value
in changing society, we held true to their value of wanting and specializing
in educating the progeny of slaves no matter their economic situation.

Welcome home.

We’ve always approached them as institutions going from strength to
strength, even if the areas where HBCUs are strong di�er from other types
of institutions.

That’s our belief and commitment at UNCF (United Negro College Fund) as
we approach our 80th anniversary in 2024.

We’re not solely advocating for 101 institutions; we’re advocating a position
that HBCUs should be prominent in the discussion about the future of all
higher education in America.

Without question, HBCU fever, like Wakanda Forever fever, is rampant.
Whether it’s Georgia gubernatorial candidate Stacy Abrams dancing the
“Electric Slide” at the “Spel-House” homecoming, or actress Angelina Jolie
hanging out with her daughter at Spelman, or Coach Deion “Prime” Sanders
leading his undefeated Jackson State University football team on to the
battle�eld to the hip hop song, “Here I Go,” by Mystical, HBCU
homecomings are o�-the-chain.

And for good reason.

While most colleges and universities are experiencing declining enrollment,
online schools and HBCUs see increases, based on a recent report from the
National Student Clearinghouse.

College enrollment dropped for the third consecutive school year after the
start of the pandemic, dashing universities’ hopes that a post-Covid
rebound was at hand.

https://nscresearchcenter.org/stay-informed/


HBCUs saw an enrollment uptick of more than 6% among freshmen.

And not surprising. No institutions of higher learning can do what HBCUs
do for Black students: producing 80% of America’s Black judges, 50% of the
country’s Black doctors and 50% of its Black lawyers.

Again, welcome home.

While totaling only 3% of all colleges and universities, UNCF institutions
and other historically Black colleges and universities are highly e�ective,
awarding 15% of bachelor’s degrees, 5% of master’s degrees, 10% of
doctoral degrees and 19% of all STEM degrees earned by Black students in
higher education.

HBCUs have a 34% mobility rate of moving their students from the bottom
40% in household income into the top 60%. This is double the national
average and �ve times more than Ivy institutions.

And yet, unlike the producers and corporate sponsors of “Black Panther:
Wakanda Forever,” who get richer by the hour, HBCUs remain chronically
underfunded.

In that spirit, I am making a call to action to HBCU alumni, fans and
supporters not only to wear the HBCU hoodies, sweatshirts and tee-shirts,
like they wear the Wakanda Forever and Black Panther paraphernalia but to
increase your spending with HBCUs with the same enthusiasm as you do
Black Panther.

Enjoy the tailgate parties at homecoming, but don’t shortchange your alma
mater in donations and charitable gifts.

These very real institutions need your support to improve infrastructure
and innovate to o�er the best possible learning experience for their
students, and they need your support.



Another major way you can support HBCUs is to join UNCF (United Negro
College Fund) in our advocacy e�orts to get Congress to pass the HBCUs
IGNITE Excellence Act, H.R. 8803. This bill is the most important single
piece of legislation for HBCUs before this Congress, and it must be passed
by both the House and Senate prior to adjournment.

The bill would require the U.S. Department of Education to disperse grants
for constructing new campus buildings, expanding broadband access, and
acquiring research and instruction equipment speci�cally at historically
Black colleges and universities (HBCUs) and qualifying minority-serving
institutions (MSIs), such as Hispanic-serving institutions (HSIs) and Asian
American- and Native American Paci�c Islander-serving institutions.

The time is now for Democrats and Republicans to join us and pass this bill,
just as they worked together to pass the FUTURE Act in 2019.

Wakanda Forever!!! HBCUs Forever!!!

And to those who are starting to understand our value – on behalf of all
HBCU alums, welcome home.  We belong to you, too.

Lodriguez Murray is senior vice president, public policy and government
a�airs, UNCF (United Negro College Fund), the nation’s largest private
provider of scholarships to minority students.



IMPACT

Healthy Minds are a Priority:
Promoting Mental Health and
Wellness of Black College
Students

DR. JAN COLLINS EAGLIN (RIGHT) OF THE STEVE FUND JOINS UNCF ICB’S VICTORIA SMITH, ESQ., TO ANNOUNCE THE
LAUNCH OF THE BLACK COLLEGE MENTAL HEALTH COMMUNITY OF ACTION DURING UNITE 2022 IN ATLANTA, GA. 

PHOTO CREDIT: ANDREW HUTH

T he lengthy COVID-19 pandemic and heightened racial tensions
across the United States intensi�ed the urgency of increasing the

reach and impact of mental health programming to support the mental
health and well-being of students, faculty and sta� at HBCUs and
predominantly Black institutions (PBIs).



To address this situation, UNCF established a partnership with The Steve
Fund, the nation’s leading organization focused on promoting mental health
and emotional well-being of young people of color.

Through the partnership, UNCF and The Steve Fund launched a newly
established mental health initiative with customized strategies, content,
programs, resources and events all designed to build knowledge and
establish a community of action around mental health and emotional well-
being of students, faculty and sta� on HBCU and PBI campuses.

The partnership kicked o� with a survey to announce the new initiative,
which was distributed to HBCU students, faculty and sta� to gauge the
state of mental health on HBCU campuses. The organization received
responses from 342 students and 419 faculty and sta� representing 47
HBCUs. Among the �ndings:

Students, faculty and sta� all agree the top three mental health concerns for

college students are: stress, anxiety and depression.

More than 65% of students shared that in a mental health crisis, they are most

likely to speak to friends or family members.

While 83% of students believe their campuses are addressing mental health and

well-being, 45% of students surveyed said they would not speak to anyone if they

were in a mental health crisis.

An overwhelming majority of students, faculty and sta� shared that they would

like to keep informed on resources about mental health and well-being, yet 25%

of faculty/sta� shared there is no training available about student mental health

and wellness.

72% of students are aware of their options for mental health counseling through

their college/university, but only 52% feel comfortable visiting the university

counseling center when a mental health issue arises.

“The Steve Fund is working to position UNCF students to achieve optimal
mental health by equipping them with the skills, tools and knowledge they
need to thrive as young adults, scholars and leaders,” said Dr. Annelle
Primm, senior medical director at The Steve Fund. “Through our
collaboration with the UNCF, the Steve Fund expands its important
partnership with higher education to foster the emotional well-being of
students of color through productive dialogue, e�ective policies and
successful promotion of access to potent, culturally salient resources. It is
imperative that the Steve Fund supports HBCUs in their critical mission.
Our partnership in the mental health initiative is a strategic investment
which will enhance cultivation of student potential and success.”

The objectives of the new partnership are to:

•

•

•

•

•



Reduce stigma and promote knowledge, dialogue and awareness around the

mental health needs of HBCU and PBI students

Engage HBCU campus leaders and mobilize a commitment to prioritize mental

health support systems and services on their campuses

Provide curated mental health recommendations to help HBCU and PBI

administrators support their students

Support HBCU and PBI institutions in their vitally important mission by assisting

them as they promote student potential and success

Provide the necessary tools, resources and supports HBCU and PBI students need

to remain or become mentally well so they can advance their personal goals to

matriculate through college and become the future leaders of tomorrow

“COVID-19 revealed just how much infrastructure and additional sta� are
needed to adequately support students, faculty and existing sta� on HBCU
campuses. We already know that the students we serve and their educators
must respond to generational trauma, racism and disinvestment to thrive—
each of these challenges takes a toll on student and faculty mental health.
Our schools and institutions need support to develop new and sustainable
ways to provide care, mentorship and compassion to students, sta� and
community members,” said Dr. Michael L. Lomax, president and CEO,
UNCF. “Through this partnership with The Steve Fund, we will begin to
develop programs and resources that will aid HBCUs in creating an
environment conducive to mental health and the emotional well-being of
students.”

•

•

•

•

•



INNOVATE

UNCF and EA Madden
Scholars Aiming to Take
Gaming Industry to Next Level

A collaboration that began during the pandemic blossomed in �scal
year 2023. UNCF and renowned video game publisher EA Madden

created a scholarship program in 2020 with the aim of supporting and
empowering aspiring students interested in pursuing careers in the gaming
industry.

On March 23, 2023, more than 20 students who received EA Madden
scholarships went to Electronic Arts (EA) Orlando for a full day of behind-
the-scenes action, showcasing how the EA SPORTS team builds some of
the most popular games in the world, celebrating the students and
highlighting the many opportunities available to them.

The inaugural class of 24 student scholars came from 12 historically Black
colleges and universities (HBCUs), including UNCF-member institutions
Clark Atlanta University and Tuskegee University to tour EA SPORTS. Other
student scholars joining the tour came from Florida A&M University,
Grambling State University, Hampton University, Howard University,



Jackson State University, Morehouse College, North Carolina A&T State
University, Morgan State University and Southern University and A&M
College.

At the welcome presentation, Daryl Holt, senior vice president and general
manager, EA SPORTS, shared his own unique career path at EA, o�ering
many insights to the group. Later on, Seann Graddy, vice president, and
Julie Foster, vice president, Brand, EA SPORTS, also joined the students to
share how EA games like Madden NFL 23, EA SPORTS™ PGA TOUR™, EA
SPORTS College Football, and others get designed, built and enhanced for
players around the world.

SCHOLARSHIP RECIPIENTS CELEBRATE AT THE EA OFFICES IN ORLANDO WHILE THEY ATTEND A SCHOLARSHIP
ORIENTATION.

The EA Madden Scholarships celebrate Coach Madden and his legendary
career in sports and entertainment and are a key part of Electronic Arts’ $5
million John Madden Legacy Commitment to Education. John Madden’s
son, Mike Madden, even surprised the students with a personal welcome
video that underscored how proud he and the entire Madden family were
of the students and underscored his family’s lifelong dedication to learning.

Madden Championship series analyst @OneGreatUser also joined in the
day’s activities and helped share his excitement for the game with all the
students. In addition to building popular TikTok and Twitch followings,
@OneGreatUser has climbed the Madden ranks over the years, including
capturing the Panthers Club Championship at EA headquarters in Redwood
Shores, CA, in Madden 20.

One of the day’s memorable highlights was a personal guided tour of the
Broadcast Studio, Motion Capture (MoCap) Studio and Art Lab at EA
Orlando. The world-class creative facilities help EA game developers to

https://www.ea.com/games/madden-nfl/madden-nfl-23
https://www.ea.com/games/ea-sports-pga-tour


build unique and intensely realistic in-game experiences. EA’s Black
Employee Resource Group, BEAT, also entertained the students through an
inspirational session that culminated with an impromptu jam to “The Swag
Song,” which provided lots of laughs and many insightful questions.

EA OFFICES IN ORLANDO WELCOME NEW UNCF-SUPPORTED SCHOLARSHIP STUDENTS.

EA SPORTS’ Orlando studio is located in the heart of downtown Orlando’s
Creative Village, an urban innovation district designed to cultivate
synergies between the region’s emerging digital media industry and
partners in education.

EA Madden’s involvement in this initiative allows them to give back to the
community and support the next generation of talented individuals in the
gaming industry. By partnering with UNCF, an organization dedicated to
providing access to higher education for underrepresented students, EA
Madden is ensuring that deserving students, regardless of their �nancial
circumstances, can pursue better futures.



INNOVATE

The HBCU Effect is Real

F or nearly two centuries, historically Black colleges and universities
(HBCUs) have consistently punched above their weight against near

insurmountable odds to prepare America’s Black scholars and other
students of color to enter society with a comprehensive education.

UNCF’s Frederick D. Patterson Research Institute (FDPRI), the nation’s
leading research authority on HBCUs, has continued its research on “The
HBCU E�ect™” to validate the purpose and signi�cant impact of HBCUs.

“The HBCU E�ect™ aims to become the authoritative source for
philanthropists, educators, students, reporters and all others researching
the latest information about the success of HBCU students, faculty
members, the institutions themselves, and by extension, their impact on the
future of the U.S. and the broader global community,” said Dr. Nadrea R.
Njoku, assistant vice president, FDPRI, UNCF.

“By uncovering HBCU truth through data and research, The HBCU E�ect™
will illuminate how HBCUs yield a high return on investment by equipping
their students, in particular �rst-generation students, with resources to
close education and wealth gaps—transforming generations,” said Njoku.

https://uncf.org/programs/hbcu-impact


HBCUs graduate low-income students, many of whom are �rst-generation,
at higher rates than predominantly White institutions (PWIs), and these
same HBCU students report greater academic and social gains than their
counterparts.

However, despite their role as a catalyst for educational, economic, cultural
and societal gains for students of color, HBCUs continue to lag behind in
public awareness, critical �nancial resources and overall support.

The HBCU E�ect™ is changing the narrative on HBCUs and o�ers
evidence-based research that can support the legitimacy and success of
HBCUs to the public rather than leaning entirely on anecdotal evidence as
has been the case in the past.



A recent UNCF workforce alumni study revealed that HBCU students are
very satis�ed with their HBCU support networks during their time on
campus and after graduation while they were pursuing opportunities in the
job market.

“We seek to build upon the �ndings from this study through deeper inquiry
to understand the collective HBCU experience and speci�c factors that
contribute to students’ success while enrolled and after college to support
accurate narratives about The HBCU E�ect™,” said Njoku.

UNCF’s FDPRI has produced three major reports in The HBCU E�ect™
series: “HBCUs Transforming Generations: Social Mobility Outcomes for
HBCU Alumni,” “Culturally Relevant Practice: Implementation among
Historically Black Colleges & Universities” and “HBCUs Punching Above
Their Weight.” To read the individual reports, click here.

UNCF’s work to validate the purpose and signi�cant impact of HBCUs
shows that despite di�erences, better futures for all of us arise out of our
common purpose—education—and goals to improve ourselves, our
communities and our nation.

https://uncf.org/pages/the-hbcu-effect-an-exploration-of-hbcu-alumnis-peer-networks-and-workforce-outcomes


INNOVATE

UNCF Reimagines Online
Education with HBCUv™
Platform

THE NEW HBCUVTM PLATFORM IS CURRENTLY BEING DEVELOPED AND WILL SUPPORT STUDENTS, STAFF AND
EDUCATORS BY DELIVERING A WORLD-CLASS EDUCATION EXPERIENCE ONLINE.

T he COVID-19 pandemic and related need for social distancing
created unprecedented challenges for higher education institutions

of all stripes, but it had a particularly pronounced impact on HBCUs.

Most of these colleges and universities were forced to pivot from in-person
classroom learning to virtual with limited �nancial resources.

In response, UNCF trained over 2,500 faculty to develop courseware for
online classes, but quickly realized the limits of current online learning
management systems (LMS).

“What we learned from the pandemic was that better training isn’t
enough,” said Dr. Shawna Acker-Ball, senior director at UNCF’s Teaching
and Learning Center. “We need better tools and technology to deliver on



the rich instruction and the strong culture of America’s HBCUs and extend
this transformative experience for students online.”

So, during �scal fear 2022, UNCF introduced a new idea for community
learning to put America’s HBCUs at the forefront of online education.

Called “HBCUv ,” the shared platform is being designed and built with
Deloitte Digital where students, educators and sta� are enabled to learn,
develop and build community together from anywhere. HBCUv  will
provide best-in-class remote education, community engagement and
career pathways to students seeking an HBCU education.

To help develop HBCUv , UNCF selected Deloitte Digital’s Ethos, a new
o�ering dedicated to using innovation to advance equity, sustainability and
social welfare goals, to design and develop the platform in collaboration
with UNCF and its partner institutions.

UNCF discovered that, while current learning management systems do a
good job at bringing education online, they make it in a way that is too
cumbersome for instructors and students unfamiliar with online learning.

To address this situation, HBCUv  will have de�ning characteristics to
ensure the experience is authentic and impactful. These include:

Promoting Black Excellence: HBCUv  will be home to the best Black courses

taught by the best Black minds in America and serve as a beacon to young Black

talent globally.

Creating Black Futures: HBCUv  will provide tools and technology that help Black

students discover and design their path to a brighter future, including career

planning and degree program matching.

Driving Results with Data: HBCUv  will leverage machine learning and big data to

fuel predictive analytics on student performance and provide real-time feedback

to instructors on lectures, assignments and assessments.

“HBCUv  will do this by embedding the culture, community and
commitment to Black excellence embodied by HBCUs into a unique online
experience that will form the foundation of the future of Black education,”
said Julian Thompson, director of strategy for UNCF’s Institute for Capacity
Building (ICB).

UNCF partnered with nine initial HBCUs—Benedict College, Cla�in
University, Clark Atlanta University, Dillard University, Jarvis Christian
College, Johnson C. Smith University, Lane College, Shaw University and
Talladega College—to develop and pilot the HBCUv  platform.

™

™

™

™

• ™

• ™

• ™

™

™

https://www.deloittedigital.com/us/en/offerings/customer-led-marketing/ethos.html


“The inclusion of HBCU students, faculty, sta� and administrators as co-
designers of the platform will be an attribute of its success,” said Dr. Valora
Richardson, UNCF’s director of digital solutions and innovation. “They
know what they need, and we heard them.”

The development of HBCUv  was made possible by more than $10 million
in funding from the Karsh Family Foundation, the Lilly Endowment, Citi
Foundation, Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation and the Bank of America
Charitable Foundation.

“This is just the beginning,” said Edward Smith-Lewis, vice president,
strategic partnerships and institutional programs at UNCF. “Solving for the
historic inequities that HBCUs and their students and sta� face will take a
sustained and concerted e�ort from a diverse coalition of non-pro�t and
for-pro�t partners.”

“For too long there has been a major innovation and investment gap
between this nation’s HBCUs and other higher education institutions,” said
Dr. Michael L. Lomax, president and chief executive o�cer, UNCF.
“HBCUv  not only aims to close that gap, but also lead the way in online
instruction and degree granting.”

The HBCUv  prototype is expected in 2024.

™

™

™



INNOVATE

Inspiring Transformative
Change in K-12 Education

PART OF THE 2022 NEW SCHOOLS FOR ALABAMA CONFERENCE EXPLORED HOW TO REDEFINE THE K-12 EDUCATION
SYSTEM IN THE UNITED STATES SO STUDENTS OF COLOR ARE NOT AT A DISADVANTAGE WHEN SEEKING A COLLEGE
DEGREE UPON GRADUATION FROM HIGH SCHOOL. DR. MICHAEL LOMAX, UNCF PRESIDENT AND CEO, RELATED HOW

HBCUS ARE CHALLENGED BY MANY STUDENTS WHO LACK SKILLS NEEDED TO SUCCEED IN COLLEGE DUE TO SYSTEMIC
K-12 ISSUES FACED BY BLACK STUDENTS.

D uring the 2022 New Schools for Alabama/National School
Foundation Association (NSFA) Conference, UNCF took center

stage with an initiative aimed at reshaping the future of education in
Alabama. The initiative, fueled by a commitment to address systemic issues
and forge innovative solutions, was a testament to UNCF's unwavering
dedication to historically Black colleges and universities (HBCUs) and the
broader landscape of education. 

In a powerful keynote address, UNCF’s president and CEO, Dr. Michael L.
Lomax, underscored the critical need to transform outcomes in K-12
education to reshape the destiny of HBCUs. His speech resonated with a
call to action, emphasizing that the future of HBCUs is intricately linked to
the transformation of the educational landscape.



“We cannot change outcomes at HBCUs until we change outcomes in K-12
education,” Lomax declared, setting the tone for a renewed era of
opportunities for generations to come. He highlighted a remarkable shift,
noting that African Americans, who once left the South due to a perceived
lack of opportunity, are now returning, and Alabama stands at the forefront
of this trend.

Addressing the persistent inequities in Alabama’s educational system,
Lomax announced UNCF’s commitment to collaborate with Alabama
HBCUs and charter schools. The objective is clear—create new and
limitless opportunities for students whose futures are inextricably tied to
the quality of education they receive.

Re�ecting on the historical signi�cance of HBCUs, Lomax shared a
compelling narrative. After the Civil War, Black and White missionaries
united in Alabama to build schools in Black communities. These institutions
not only provided primary and secondary education but also became the
bedrock for training Black teachers. HBCUs played a pivotal role in
breaking the cycle of non-education, with graduates making a lasting
impact.

DR. MICHAEL LOMAX, UNCF PRESIDENT AND CEO, DELIVERS THE KEYNOTE ADDRESS TO THE 2022 NEW SCHOOLS FOR
ALABAMA CONFERENCE.

Lomax shed light on an extraordinary education initiative of the 20th
century—the brainchild of Booker T. Washington and Jewish philanthropist
Julius Rosenwald. Together, they addressed Black illiteracy by establishing
5,000 one-room schoolhouses across the South. Lomax urged the charter
school community to learn from this model, emphasizing the importance of
community engagement and ownership.



“We don’t have to do this the way it’s been done before. We don’t have to
do what other cities have done,” Lomax asserted.

He called for a uni�ed voice in advocating for community needs, urging a
unique approach deeply embedded in collaboration with institutions
connected to the community. Highlighting the partnership potential, he
emphasized that charter schools need HBCUs, and HBCUs need charter
schools. The collaboration extends to developing K-12 schools on HBCU
campuses, fostering college-ready students through early college
admission, and addressing the critical shortage of Black teachers—a
pivotal initiative for community empowerment. Lomax stressed the
importance of equipping communities with educators who understand
their unique challenges and can serve as role models, contributing to the
broader goal of creating a positive and impactful educational environment.

As the keynote concluded, Lomax expressed UNCF’s eagerness for
collaboration, envisioning a new era of education, innovation and
opportunity. The movement is fueled by determination—to address
inequities, eliminate disparities and provide the education that every child
deserves for success in the next generation.

Lomax’s speech set the stage for a pivotal session at the NSFA Conference,
where UNCF and college and university leaders engaged in profound
discussions on the path for a rede�ned K-12 education system. Panelists
included Lomax, Dr. Gregory Vincent (Talladega College president), Dr.
Maria Lumpkin (Stillman College vice president of strategic initiatives and
chief transformation director), Bobbie Knight (Miles College president) and
Dr. Ken Tucker (University of West Alabama president). The session delved
into the issues facing K-12 education and explored solutions.

Lomax provided context to challenges faced by HBCUs, seeking insights
into the real issues a�ecting students entering higher education. Vincent
shared perspectives on overcoming challenges within his administration,
highlighting the complexities and potential roadblocks. Tucker shared a
unique perspective implementing a charter school on a college campus,
o�ering practical insights into addressing challenges. Knight engaged in a
visionary exercise, contemplating unconstrained solutions to the hurdles
faced by young leaders.

Through innovative e�orts being undertaken by UNCF to foster real change
in the K-12 landscape, this conference became a launchpad for a new era in
education—a collaborative and inclusive era that recognizes the potential
of every student.



INSPIRE

Bennett College is Preparing
Women of Color to Lead with
Purpose, Integrity and a Strong
Sense of Self-Worth

BENNETT COLLEGE STUDENTS CELEBRATE ITS 150TH ANNIVERSARY DURING 2023.

U NCF-member Bennett College is one of only two all-women
historically Black colleges and universities (HBCUs) in the country

and one of UNCF’s 37 member institutions. Founded in 1873 by formerly
enslaved individuals, Bennett transitioned into a women's college in 1926
and is one of just 26 women's colleges in the United States.

In 2023, Bennett earned recognition as one of the nation’s “Best Women’s
Colleges” by BestCollege.com. Dedicated to fostering bold women leaders,
entrepreneurs and agents of social change through an integrated approach



to intellectual, social and spiritual development, Bennett celebrated its
150th anniversary in 2023.

Bennett College embraces the concept of being a “microcollege,” which
President Suzanne Elise Walsh de�nes as being deliberately small with an
enrollment of under 1,000 students.

“Our smallness is our strength. It allows us to be nimble and �exible.
Bennett College was not built for more than about 840 students. We’ll
never be in the 5,000-student place. This is who we are, and we are proud
of it,” said Walsh. “Everybody usually focuses on the number as if the
number tells them something. But, if you’re not keeping the students or
they’re not graduating, something’s not working. It’s not about size, it’s
about what kind of services you can provide. A ‘microcollege’ is about
wrapping yourselves around students and giving them all the things that
you would want in a boutique environment.”

BENNETT COLLEGE PRESIDENT SUZANNE WALSH

Under Walsh’s leadership, Bennett implemented a “minimester” system,
replacing traditional semesters. This innovative approach has decreased
cognitive load and increased �rst-year student retention to 90%.
Nationwide, based on IPEDS data, retention from �rst to second year for
full-time students is about 75.6%.

https://nces.ed.gov/ipeds/TrendGenerator/app/answer/7/32


President Walsh and her team used data to revamp academic structures
and right-size the institution, achieving three consecutive years of positive
cash �ow, introduced a virtual learning option for students unable to attend
in-person, created innovative business partnerships to support key
administrative functions and secured a historic �nancial investment
strategy through The Historic Fund, a venture capital fund, exceeding $10
million.

Bennett is also the �rst and only women’s college with a U.S. Small Business
Administration Women’s Business Center on its campus.

On the national front, Bennett ranked �rst in social mobility among liberal
arts colleges in 2022 and was rated a Best College for Social Mobility in
2022-2023 by U.S. News & World Report, as well as receiving a designation
as a Fulbright HBCU Institutional Leader for multiple years.

A United Methodist Church-a�liated institution, Bennett has accreditation
status with the Transnational Association of Christian Colleges.

With those outstanding credentials, Bennett College is making an impact
and helping to secure better futures for us all



INSPIRE

Why I Serve: Dr. Blondean
Davis, a Visionary Educator
with a Passion for UNCF and
HBCUs

DR. BLONDEAN DAVIS HAS HELPED RAISE MORE THAN $10 MILLION IN SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS FOR UNCF-SUPPORTED
STUDENTS.

W hen you think of making a di�erence for Black students, those who



serve in the education �eld truly change lives. For decades, Chicago-based
educator Dr. Blondean Y. Davis has raised money to support the work of
UNCF and students of color to ful�ll their dreams of attending college.

The former chief of schools and regions of Chicago Public Schools (CPS),
Davis was responsible for the management of seven regions and 601
schools. She served as the chairperson for the CPS employee campaign for
UNCF. Through those e�orts, she helped to raise more than $10 million that
helped more than 4,000 students to receive scholarships to attend college.

After retiring from CPS after 30 years of service, Davis’s passion for
educating children led her to become the superintendent of Matteson
School District 162 in 2002 and in 2010 to take on the challenge of opening
a new high school.

Davis is the founder and CEO of the predominantly African American
Southland College Prep Charter High School, the only charter high school
to earn the state of Illinois’ highest designation of “exemplary.” The school
has 100% college acceptance for its 10 graduating classes, whose members
earned nearly $350 million in scholarships.

Recognized nationally for her vision and leadership in education reform and
raising student achievement levels, Davis is possibly the only African
American woman to lead a public elementary school district while also
acting as a pro bono CEO of a successful charter high school.



Davis is a member of the board of trustees of Tougaloo College in
Mississippi. In 2023, she organized suburban school district
superintendents to join forces with UNCF to sponsor a scholarship gala that
raised more than $200,000.

The success of UNCF, its member HBCUs and all HBCUs is driven by
committed and conscientious supporters like Dr. Blondean Y. Davis, who
�rmly believe that “A mind is a terrible thing to waste”  and work to ensure
better futures for us all.

®



INSPIRE

Hip Hop Raised more than a
Half-Million Dollars in
Houston to support HBCU
Students

MC LYTE, RENOWNED PIONEER FEMALE RAPPER, ROCKS THE CROWD AT 2022 HOUSTON UNCF “A MIND IS…”® GALA,
PERFORMING FOR 600 GUESTS

T he 2022 Houston UNCF “A Mind is…”® Gala was a truly epic
statement for many reasons for the organization’s annual

development e�orts. The in-person fundraiser raised a substantial
near-$600,000 sum, returning to being a live event for the �rst time since
2019—and pulled it o� with a “hip” �ip on traditional UNCF fundraising
galas by wrapping it all in hip hop music.



The night was strategically themed “Hip Hop You Don’t Stop” to appeal to a
younger generation of philanthropists who grew up listening to a genre of
music that resonates with so many.

Local legends �lled the house at the event on Nov. 19 at the Houston Hilton
Americas Hotel. Spelman College graduates Gaynell Floyd Drexler and
Heidi McDonald Smith served as gala co-chairs. Dr. Alvia Wardlaw, curator
and director, University Museum at Texas Southern University, also a
Scholarly Advisory Committee member for the Smithsonian National
Museum of African American History, was the gala’s honorary chair.

Additional honorees included Howard University graduate Nicholas
Perkins, chairman, president and CEO of Perkins Management Services
Company and Black Titan Investment Corporation and the �rst African
American to own a national hamburger franchise; Morehouse graduate
Rommel Quarterman, executive managing partner at Johnny Carrabba
Family Restaurants and the proud father of a current Spelman College
rising junior; and Dillard University graduate Dr. Ruth J. Simmons, president
of Prairie View A&M University, also the �rst African American president of
an Ivy League institution.

As with any highly sought out event, the night included the who’s who of
Houston, all joining UNCF President and CEO Dr. Michael Lomax for a
rousing night of hip hop history as funds were raised to support the UNCF
mission.



U.S. REP. SHEILA JACKSON LEE (D-TX) (CENTER) TAKES A MINUTE TO POSE WITH GALA ATTENDEE GABRIELLE
GUNN AND MOREHOUSE COLLEGE GRADUATE AND HOUSTON UNCF LEADERSHIP COUNCIL MEMBER BRYCE
HAIRSTON KENNARD.



U.S. Rep. Sheila Jackson Lee (D-TX), Houston Mayor Sylvester Turner and
Houston City Council Member Ti�any Thomas were also in attendance.
Huston-Tillotson University’s (HTU) reigning Miss UNCF Surrender
Lockridge and other HTU students networked and mingled with guests
during the reception and dinner.

ANITA LOCKRIDGE AND HEIDI MCDONALD SMITH, GALA CHAIR AND SPELMAN COLLEGE GRADUATE, SHOW
OFF THEIR BLACK-TIE FLY ATTIRE WHILE POSING WITH THE 1993 CADILLAC FLEETWOOD DURING THE 2022
HOUSTON UNCF “A MIND IS…”® GALA AT THE HILTON AMERICAS-HOUSTON HOTEL.

SHELL USA, INC., RETIREE AND HOUSTON UNCF LEADERSHIP COUNCIL MEMBER AND HIS WIFE, MIKE AND
LEANNE ALVAREZ, ARE ALL SMILES DURING THE GALA DINNER PROGRAM.



Major event sponsors were Waste Connections, H-E-B, ConocoPhillips,
Brentwood Baptist Church, Wells Fargo, Enterprise Holdings Foundation,
NABORS, and Benny and Nikki Agosto, Jr.

Highlights included the slow, loud and banging 1993 Cadillac Fleetwood
parked outside the ballroom, a digital-visual storyboard �lled with images
showcasing hip hop culture and artists, professional break dancers from
Break Free Houston, who gave a glimpse of what can be expected at the
2024 Olympics in Paris, and a mic-dropping performance by the one and
only MC Lyte.

The UNCF Houston Area O�ce rocked the party by surpassing its half
million-dollar goal before the party ballroom doors even opened. Going
into the event the team led by Area Development Director Zarinah Poole,
Development Director Kaylon Beck and Administrative Assistant Jewell
Bass was also supported by Mayor Turner and Houston UNCF Leadership
Council member Bryce Kennard, also a graduate of Morehouse College, in
securing night-of donations from the attendees.

The Houston Hip Hop Gala is an outstanding example of how galas, masked
balls and other vital UNCF fundraising activities support HBCUs and their
students, ensuring better futures for all Americans.





INVEST

UNCF and Gray Foundation
Partnership Provides a Pathway
for More New York City
Students to Attend HBCUs

THE GRAY FOUNDATION WELCOMES THE NEWEST GRAY NYC SCHOLARS AT A RECEPTION AT THE BLACKSTONE EVENT
CENTER IN NEW YORK CITY.

I n January 2023, UNCF partnered with the Gray Foundation to launch
the UNCF Gray NYC Scholars Program. The program provides

scholarships and wraparound supports to help underrepresented New York
City students from low-income backgrounds attend and earn their degrees
at historically Black colleges and universities (HBCUs).

Funded with a $3 million grant from the Gray Foundation, UNCF selected 11
scholars from among 79 New York City (NYC) students who were
nominated by the Gray Foundation’s 27 college access partners. Together,
the organizations provide vital assistance to thousands of students in the



college application process. Including this new collaboration, the
foundation has now committed more than $55 million to improve college
access and success for NYC youth.

GRAY FOUNDATION

The goal of the UNCF Gray NYC Scholars Program is to increase awareness
of, access to and graduation from HBCUs for economically disadvantaged
NYC students who might not otherwise have considered these schools.
Each scholar will receive an annual scholarship of up to $50,000 per year to
help cover tuition, room, board and other related expenses.

Generous renewable scholarship awards allow students to concentrate
their time and energy on academic activities, without the distraction of
�nancial concerns. But the student support does not end there. The
scholarship program’s �nancial support is complemented by wraparound
student support services that provide frequent, intentional engagement
with students essential for them to successfully complete college and
graduate.

Program services include a college success coach whose regular
engagement and communication with scholars supports their academic
progress and professional development; a mentor network to provide
HBCU alumni mentors for these HBCU-bound students; and an online
learning community that provides valuable online resources, tools and
information designed to empower and prepare scholars for academic and
personal success.

The wraparound support services have proven critical to enabling students
to overcome challenges that limit successful academic outcomes—
especially among students from vulnerable populations, such as low-
income, �rst-generation college students.



In June 2023, the Gray Foundation hosted a reception in New York City for
its Gray NYC Scholars, including the inaugural cohort of UNCF Gray NYC
Scholars. The scholars along with members of their families and
representatives from the college access organizations met with Gray
Foundation co-founders Mindy and Jon Gray, as well as UNCF President
and CEO Dr. Michael Lomax.

“We’re excited to deepen our partnership with UNCF and build on our
signi�cant investment in expanding college access for New York City
students. And we couldn’t be more thrilled to welcome this new cohort of
accomplished and deserving students into the Gray NYC Scholars
community and help them pursue their educational aspirations at the HBCU
of their choice. We are con�dent that with the backing of UNCF, with its
impressive track record of supporting student success, these scholars will
achieve excellence in college and beyond,” said Jon and Mindy Gray.

“For too long, HBCUs, which have played such an outsized role in
producing this country’s Black middle class, have been out of reach, and in
some cases o� the radar, for low-income students in New York City. This
program puts HBCUs within reach and broadens the realm of viable college
options so that students can choose the school that is the best �t for their
interests and needs,” said Gray Foundation President Charissa Fernández.

Together, UNCF and the Gray Foundation are empowering more students
to achieve better futures to serve their communities and the nation.



INVEST

UNCF, Thurgood Marshall
College Fund and Partnership
for Education Advancement
Announce Historic
Collaboration to Improve
Socioeconomic Outcomes for
Black Communities

TO ASSIST WITH THE EFFORTS FUNDED BY BLUE MERIDIAN PARTNERS, UNCF’S INSTITUTE FOR CAPACITY BUILDING
LAUNCHED A NEW WEBSITE TO PROVIDE SUPPORT TO THE HBCU TRANSFORMATION PROJECT EFFORT.

U NCF, Thurgood Marshall College Fund (TMCF) and the Partnership
for Education Advancement launched a landmark collaboration

recently to drive tangible, long-term progress across historically Black
colleges and universities (HBCUs) and impact the Black economy.



Dubbed the HBCU Transformation Project, this �rst-of-its-kind
collaboration aims to increase HBCU health and sustainability, improve
student outcomes in retention and graduation rates, expand enrollment
and increase capacity building with faculty and sta�. Flexible support from
the coalition focuses resources to highest priorities at each institution.

The overall initiative is structured around six interdependent sub-initiatives
that work in service of supporting all HBCUs:

Institutional improvement and innovation via TMCF, UNCF and the Partnership for

Education Advancement

Institutional and intermediary capacity building

Increased public funding for HBCUs to rectify historic inequities

Private capital campaign for endowments and sustainable reserves

Community and regional economic development partnerships

Reorienting the narratives surrounding HBCUs toward their outsized impact on

social and economic mobility outcomes

Blue Meridian Partners, a pioneering philanthropic model for �nding and
funding scalable solutions to problems that limit economic and social
mobility for America’s young people and families in poverty, committed an
initial $60 million to support the HBCU Transformation Project. 

Although they represent just 3% of all higher education institutions, HBCUs
produce nearly 20% of all African American college graduates. HBCUs have
produced more than 1 million associate, bachelor’s, master’s and doctoral
degrees combined since 1984.

HBCUs produce 40% of all Black engineers, 40% of Black Congress
members, 50% of all Black lawyers, 50% of all Black doctors, and 80% of
Black judges. These professions are critical for closing the wealth gap
between Black and White workers.

While HBCUs overproduce relative to their better-resourced counterparts,
they have remained underfunded. Historical underfunding has led to a
myriad of �nancial issues for HBCUs, particularly much smaller
endowments relative to their peers. 

“Our country has under-invested in HBCUs, which have a proven track
record for unlocking student potential, driving socioeconomic mobility and
serving as signi�cant community assets,” said James Runcie, president,
Partnership for Education Advancement.

Recent data from McKinsey & Company shows that investing in HBCUs
would profoundly a�ect the U.S. economy and help �ll the social and
economic gaps Black Americans experience. HBCUs are uniquely

•

•

•

•

•

•

https://www.mckinsey.com/industries/education/our-insights/how-hbcus-can-accelerate-black-economic-mobility


positioned to foster such advancement given their assets, experience and
cultural and historical signi�cance.

“This collaboration o�ers a powerful opportunity to drive positive
socioeconomic impact,” said Dr. Harry L. Williams, president and CEO,
TMCF. “We are proud to partner on this unique, capacity-focused strategy
that brings together HBCU institutional relationships and the capacity
building experience of TMCF, UNCF and the Partnership for Education
Advancement.”

“UNCF and Thurgood Marshall College Fund have worked together for
many years, and this collaboration is a continuation of our e�orts to amplify
support for the needs of HBCUs and the students they serve,” said Dr.
Michael L. Lomax, president and CEO, UNCF. “Blue Meridian Partners’
support is very important and will signi�cantly enhance the HBCU
innovation and transformation work that UNCF’s Institute for Capacity
Building team has been pioneering for nearly two decades. This high-pro�le
campaign will make the case to donors and to the government to elevate
the pro�le of HBCUs and raise the support they deserve.”

“HBCUs have long overperformed as engines of opportunity,” added Jim
Shelton, Blue Meridian Partners chief investment and innovation o�cer.
“With this investment, we aim to signi�cantly strengthen these institutions
and student success at scale, contribute to closing racial gaps in access to
opportunity and boost economic mobility and wealth-building among Black
people and communities now and for generations to come.”

The initiative will be executed using a cohort model of select institutions.
The inaugural participating HBCUs are:

Alabama State University Morehouse College

Benedict College Norfolk State University

Cla�in University North Carolina Agricultural & Technical State
University

Clark Atlanta University South Carolina State University

Delaware State University Spelman College

Dillard University Talladega College

Florida A&M University Tuskegee University

Hampton University University of Maryland Eastern Shore



Huston-Tillotson
University

Wiley College

Johnson C. Smith
University

Winston-Salem State University



INVEST

Ralph Lauren Corporation and
The Ralph Lauren Corporate
Foundation Help Light the Way
for HBCUs Students

RALPH LAUREN’S BLACK ADVISORY COUNCIL LAUNCHED ITS RALPH LAUREN PIN OF SOLIDARITY IN LATE 2021 TO
CUSTOMERS. ONE HUNDRED PERCENT OF THE PROFITS ARE GIVEN TO UNCF TO FUND THE NEW SCHOLARSHIP

PROGRAM.

B oth the Ralph Lauren Corporation and The Ralph Lauren Corporate
Foundation maintain a strong partnership with UNCF, empowering

students of color to pursue and earn their college degrees at HBCUs.

Executive Chairman and Chief Creative O�cer Ralph Lauren characterized
the company’s commitment best. “Students represent the best of the
human spirit. When all students have an equal chance to succeed, their
dreams become realities and inspire us all.”



In 2022, The Ralph Lauren Corporate Foundation provided UNCF with a
grant to establish The Ralph Lauren Corporate Foundation Scholarship to
provide renewable two-year need-based scholarships to juniors attending
one of 10 HBCUs selected by the foundation. The program provides support
to students attending Bennett College, North Carolina Central University,
North Carolina A&T State University, Saint Augustine’s University,
Tennessee State University, Tuskegee University, Cheyney University,
Florida A&M University, Norfolk State University and Wiley College.

As another bite at the apple, the Ralph Lauren Corporation has a second
scholarship—the UNCF-Ralph Lauren Scholarship Program, which provides
awards to seniors attending any accredited four-year HBCU with unmet
�nancial need to get them across the �nish line. The program was funded
by the Ralph Lauren Pin of Solidarity—a timeless, tangible symbol of
allyship and unity with Black, African and African American communities;
100% of the pro�ts from the sale of the pins were contributed to support
the new scholarship.

To build on a long-standing commitment to UNCF and HBCUs, Ralph
Lauren Corporation has also provided in-store shopping experiences on
designated days at its stores in Beverly Hills and New York City, providing a
percentage of the sales on the days to UNCF. Its employees and The Ralph
Lauren Corporate Foundation are staunch supporters of the annual UNCF
New York Walk for Education and New York “A Mind Is…”  Gala. And in
recognition of Juneteenth in 2023, the company provided a percentage of
sales on that day to UNCF from seven stores based in Atlanta, Beverly Hills,
Boston, Chicago, Houston, New York and Washington, DC.

Both the Ralph Lauren Corporation’s and Foundation’s support for HBCUs
and students of color goes beyond �nancial contributions. Both arms of the
organization are actively involved in creating opportunities, raising
awareness and empowering individuals within these communities.

As a signi�cant philanthropic partner and ongoing supporter of HBCUs and
their students, Ralph Lauren Corporation was presented with UNCF’s
Corporate Partner Award at the March 2023 New York UNCF “A Mind
Is…”  Gala.

UNCF’s mission to support HBCUs and their students would be near
impossible to achieve if it were not for the steadfast commitment and
funding support of partners like Ralph Lauren Corporation and The Ralph
Lauren Corporate Foundation. They get it. And they help UNCF live up to
“A mind is a terrible thing to waste, but a wonderful thing to invest in.”®

®

®
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Board of Directors and Members 
United Negro College Fund, Inc.: 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the United Negro College Fund, Inc. (the Organization), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of March 31, 2023, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Organization as of March 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

● Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
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● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

● Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information  

We have previously audited the Organization’s 2022 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified 
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated August 22, 2022. In our opinion, the 
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, is 
consistent in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

 

  
 

 

  

McLean, Virginia 
August 11, 2023 

     
 



UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

March 31, 2023 and 2022

Assets 2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents (notes 2b and 4) $ 43,783,759  144,848,181  
Short-term investments (notes 5 and 9) 133,572,075  13,819,284  
GMSP short-term investments (notes 5 and 9) 60,308,295  62,751,058  
Pledges receivable, net (note 6) 241,069,307  83,311,168  
Accrued investment income 2,276,316  682,774  
Long term investments (notes 7 and 9) 252,769,113  230,832,867  
GMSP long term investments (notes 8 and 9) 81,226,659  112,731,288  
Property and equipment, net (note 10) 27,829,222  24,860,087  
Collections acquired (note 11) 1,414,250  1,414,250  
Other assets 4,564,097  4,601,002  

Total assets $ 848,813,093  679,851,959  

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 14,006,217  9,835,733  
Accrued wages, vacation, and other related expenses 5,957,162  4,959,156  
Payable for unsettled investment trades (note 8) 14,320  13,750  
Accrued distribution to member institutions 8,858,535  12,414,602  
Accrued return of funds to the Gates Foundation (note 12) 16,000,000  26,000,000  
Deferred revenue 7,571,107  8,210,781  
Line of credit (note 13) —  —  
Bonds payable (note 14) 24,334,966  25,311,526  

Total liabilities 76,742,307  86,745,548  

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated 29,108,497  27,140,131  
Board designated – operating reserve (note 21) 17,580,453  16,920,571  
Board designated – member distribution reserve (note 21) 4,849,654  4,807,367  

Total without donor restrictions 51,538,604  48,868,069  

With donor restrictions (note 15) 720,532,182  544,238,342  

Total net assets 772,070,786  593,106,411  

Commitments and contingencies (note 20) —  —  

Total liabilities and net assets $ 848,813,093  679,851,959  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC.

Statement of Activities

Year ended March 31, 2023
(with summarized financial information for fiscal year 2022)

2023
Without donor With donor 2022

restrictions restrictions Total Total

Revenue, gains, and other support:
Support:

Contributions for grants and scholarships $ —  300,026,632  300,026,632  153,083,173  
Contributions and gifts (notes 2 and 18) 40,881,253  —  40,881,253  47,617,776  
Bequests and legacies 8,896,387  2,706,857  11,603,244  11,669,874  
Gifts-in-kind and donated services (note 17) —  1,019,343  1,019,343  981,974  

Total support 49,777,640  303,752,832  353,530,472  213,352,797  

Investment income:
Interest and dividends 2,234,764  3,712,119  5,946,883  3,268,407  
Amortization of investment premium and discount (27,186) 144,537  117,351  (255,792) 
Realized gains 376,104  1,592,468  1,968,572  6,962,692  
Unrealized losses (1,675,652) (10,266,491) (11,942,143) (685,136) 

Total investment income (loss) 908,030  (4,817,367) (3,909,337) 9,290,171  

Net assets released from restrictions (note 15) 122,641,625  (122,641,625) —  —  

Total revenue, gains, and other support 173,327,295  176,293,840  349,621,135  222,642,968  

Expenses:
Program services:

GMSP 27,106,499  —  27,106,499  36,976,337  
Scholarships and special projects 94,603,486  —  94,603,486  105,974,019  
Distributions to member institutions 21,029,880  —  21,029,880  23,180,395  
Institutional services 1,565,605  —  1,565,605  1,667,454  
Other program services 931,640  —  931,640  210,696  

Total program services 145,237,110  —  145,237,110  168,008,901  

Supporting services:
Management and general 6,742,017  —  6,742,017  7,058,357  
Fundraising 18,677,633  —  18,677,633  16,827,758  

Total supporting services 25,419,650  —  25,419,650  23,886,115  

Total expenses 170,656,760  —  170,656,760  191,895,016  

Change in net assets 2,670,535  176,293,840  178,964,375  30,747,952  

Net assets, beginning of year 48,868,069  544,238,342  593,106,411  562,358,459  

Net assets, end of year $ 51,538,604  720,532,182  772,070,786  593,106,411  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

4



UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended March 31, 2023
(with summarized financial information for 2022)

Program services – assistance to member
and nonmember institutions

Scholarships Distribution Other Total
and special to member Institutional program program

GMSP projects institutions services services services

Distributions:
Capital and operational support $ —  —  21,029,880  —  —  21,029,880  
Grants and scholarships 24,207,260  49,263,930  —  5,200  125,000  73,601,390  

Total distributions 24,207,260  49,263,930  21,029,880  5,200  125,000  94,631,270  

Expenses before depreciation, amortization, and
bad debts:

Salaries and wages 1,251,565  8,103,095  —  963,769  307,895  10,626,324  
Employee benefits 355,937  2,295,808  —  142,120  88,132  2,881,997  
Advertisements and promotions 20,000  259,362  —  10,354  15,988  305,704  
Professional and consulting fees 272,960  21,505,074  —  245,113  208,702  22,231,849  
Information technology support 407,435  1,464,680  —  (320,376) —  1,551,739  
Office supplies and other expenses 26,603  275,901  —  246,468  5,722  554,694  
Telephone 1,065  10,701  —  10,691  379  22,836  
Postage and shipping 852  32,508  —  792  —  34,152  
Occupancy 141,816  798,978  —  167,058  14,884  1,122,736  
Printing and publications 1,200  280,871  —  51,890  5,978  339,939  
Travel 81,532  1,626,199  —  44,756  53,333  1,805,820  
Meetings 154,356  1,864,618  —  3,056  8,260  2,030,290  
Equipment rental and maintenance 3,918  18,135  —  2,107  —  24,160  
Interest expense —  —  —  —  —  —  
Indirect cost recovery 180,000  6,803,626  —  (7,393) 97,367  7,073,600  

Total expenses before depreciation,
amortization, and bad debts 27,106,499  94,603,486  21,029,880  1,565,605  931,640  145,237,110  

Depreciation and amortization expense —  —  —  —  —  —  
Bad debt expense —  —  —  —  —  —  

Total expenses $ 27,106,499  94,603,486  21,029,880  1,565,605  931,640  145,237,110  

(Continued)5



UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended March 31, 2023
(with summarized financial information for 2022)

Supporting services
Management Total Total program service and

and Fund- supporting supporting service expenses
general raising services 2023 2022

Distributions:
Capital and operational support $ —  —  —  21,029,880  23,180,395  
Grants and scholarships 4,500  —  4,500  73,605,890  101,167,405  

Total distributions 4,500  —  4,500  94,635,770  124,347,800  

Expenses before depreciation, amortization, and
bad debts:

Salaries and wages 7,697,278  8,146,945  15,844,223  26,470,547  22,646,443  
Employee benefits 1,698,327  1,989,642  3,687,969  6,569,966  5,601,479  
Advertisements and promotions 19,741  198,364  218,105  523,809  275,660  
Professional and consulting fees 3,880,873  1,593,225  5,474,098  27,705,947  23,787,667  
Information technology support (1,907,071) 258,014  (1,649,057) (97,318) (174,246) 
Office supplies and other expenses 431,583  449,070  880,653  1,435,347  1,216,174  
Telephone 370,623  19,523  390,146  412,982  428,587  
Postage and shipping 35,744  1,648,736  1,684,480  1,718,632  1,508,899  
Occupancy (614,378) 838,270  223,892  1,346,628  1,549,704  
Printing and publications 75,912  2,977,118  3,053,030  3,392,969  2,859,366  
Travel 309,058  366,380  675,438  2,481,258  358,576  
Meetings 54,252  116,105  170,357  2,200,647  357,721  
Equipment rental and maintenance 220,303  41,241  261,544  285,704  292,563  
Interest expense 943,221  —  943,221  943,221  976,537  
Indirect cost recovery (7,073,600) —  (7,073,600) —  —  

Total expenses before depreciation,
amortization, and bad debts 6,146,366  18,642,633  24,788,999  170,026,109  186,032,930  

Depreciation and amortization expense 595,651  —  595,651  595,651  861,838  
Bad debt expense —  35,000  35,000  35,000  5,000,250  

Total expenses $ 6,742,017  18,677,633  25,419,650  170,656,760  191,895,018  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $ 178,964,375  30,747,952  
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used in

operating activities:
Realized gains on investments (1,968,572) (6,962,692) 
Unrealized losses on investments 11,942,143  685,136  
Amortization of investment premium and discount (117,351) 255,792  
Bad debt expense 111,498  5,000,250  
Depreciation and amortization 595,651  861,838  
Contributions restricted for investment in endowment funds (4,559,029) (25,970,929) 
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Pledges receivable (157,758,139) (8,107,540) 
Provision for uncollectible —  (4,959,250) 
Accrued investment income (1,593,542) 279,586  
Other assets 36,904  275,385  

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,170,484  4,126,569  
Accrued wages, vacation, and other related personnel expenses 998,006  1,473,358  
Accrued return of funds to the Gates Foundation (10,000,000) (8,000,000) 
Deferred revenue (639,674) (3,317,167) 
Accrued distributions to member institutions (3,556,066) 2,325,842  

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 16,626,688  (11,285,870) 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (351,789,056) (251,555,153) 
Proceeds from sales of investments 234,190,621  301,224,515  
Purchase of property and equipment (3,675,144) (848,800) 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (121,273,579) 48,820,562  

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of bonds payable (976,560) (943,748) 
Contributions restricted for investment in endowment funds 4,559,029  25,970,929  

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,582,469  25,027,181  

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (101,064,422) 62,561,873  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 144,848,181  82,286,308  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 43,783,759  144,848,181  

Cash paid for interest $ 943,221  976,537  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 8 (Continued) 

(1) Organization 
The United Negro College Fund, Inc. (UNCF) is organized as a not-for-profit entity established to assist its 
37 current member institutions of higher education to raise funds from the public for their mutual support. 

All participating member institutions receive distributions of unrestricted support and revenues pursuant to 
a formula. Support and revenue, net of expenses, raised in accordance with joint campaign agreements, is 
distributed 75% to the member institutions conducting the campaign. The remaining 25% is included in the 
regular campaign formula distribution to all member institutions. Member institutions participate in both 
regular and joint campaigns. 

In addition, UNCF administers grants, scholarships, and other programs benefiting students, member 
institutions, and nonmember institutions based on donor stipulations. 

In the March 2022 meeting, the Board of Directors of UNCF approved a six-year capital campaign with a 
goal of $1 billion. The funds raised will enhance UNCF's endowed scholarships, increase the endowments 
for member institutions, provide more support for institutional capacity building, and fortify UNCF's 
operations and programs. The campaign is currently in its silent phase, intending to go public once 
approximately 80% of the goal is achieved. During the "silent phase," solicitations will be limited to a select 
number of prospective donors. The campaign raised approximately $231.9 million and $85.6 million in 
fiscal years 2023 and 2022, respectively. As of the end of fiscal year 2023, $397.2 million has been raised 
towards the $1 billion goal. The funds raised that have met all the accounting recognition criteria are 
reported as revenue on the statement of activities. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
(a) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financial statements of UNCF are presented in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting. 

(b) Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents are liquid investments with original maturities at the date of purchase of three months 
or less and consist primarily of money market funds and repurchase agreements used for overnight 
investment purposes. Cash equivalents that are to be used for the long-term purposes of UNCF are 
classified as investments. Cash equivalents are valued at their carrying amount, which approximates 
fair value due to their short maturities. 

(c) Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices, or, in the case of alternative 
investments, at estimated values provided by the fund managers or general partners based on quoted 
market prices, if available, at estimated fair value utilizing net asset values or other valuation methods. 
Net asset value is used as a practical expedient to estimate the fair value of certain of these funds. Net 
asset value, in many instances, may not equal fair value. 



UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 9 (Continued) 

Investments classified as short-term are available for operations in the next fiscal year. The cost 
assigned to investments received by gift is the fair value at the date the gift is received. Unrealized and 
realized gains and losses are included in the accompanying statements of activities. 

UNCF has authorized its investment managers to utilize financial future derivative instruments to either 
hedge risk or alter the exposure to certain asset classes. UNCF has established procedures to monitor 
and manage the use of these derivative instruments and the related market, interest and counterparty 
credit risks. These derivative instruments are recognized at fair value, using quoted market prices for 
similar instruments, within investments in the statements of financial position. 

Investment income is reported net of related expenses, such as custodial fees, commission, investment 
advisory fees, and direct internal investment expenses. 

(d) Pledges Receivable 
Pledges receivable consist primarily of amounts due from unconditional promises to give by various 
donors. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at 
the present value of their estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed 
using risk-adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises to give are received. 
Amortization of the discounts is included in contributions and gifts revenue. An allowance for 
uncollectible pledges receivable is provided based on Management's judgment, including such factors 
as prior collection history, type of contribution, and nature of fund-raising activity. 

(e) Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or if donated, such assets are recorded at the estimated 
fair value at the date of receipt. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated 
useful lives ranging from three to ten years. Buildings are depreciated over an estimated useful life of 
40 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease's remaining life or the 
improvements' estimated useful life. Property and equipment purchased with donor-restricted funds are 
reported as net assets without donor restriction upon acquisition of the assets, and the assets are 
placed in service. 

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expenses as incurred. UNCF follows the 
policy of capitalizing interest as a component of property and equipment constructed for its own use 
and depreciation or amortization of an asset begins when the asset is available for its intended use. 

(f) Capitalized Software 
Certain costs to develop or obtain internal-use software are capitalized under FASB ASC Topic 350-40, 
Accounting for the Costs of Software for Internal Use. After all substantial testing and deployment are 
completed and the software is ready for its intended use, internally developed software costs are 
amortized using the straight-line method over the software's estimated useful life. 

The capitalized software in development included in the property and equipment section of the 
accompanied statement of position for FY2023 and 2022 were $3,564,787 and $848,800, respectively. 
These investments pertain to the costs incurred for developing the Enterprise Data Management 
Platform, which will serve as a centralized hub for all data distribution channels to support the 
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organization's strategic goals and the HBCUv online community learning platform. The amortization will 
begin once the software is fully developed, tested, and operational. 

(g) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
UNCF reviews the carrying amounts of assets whenever events or circumstances indicate that such 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When considered impaired, the asset's carrying amount is 
reduced by a charge to its current fair value to the accompanying statements of activities. 

(h) Collections Acquired 
Accessions of collection items are capitalized at cost if the items are purchased or at their fair value on 
the accession date if the items are contributed. Gains or losses from deaccessions of these items are 
reflected in the accompanying statement of activities as changes in the appropriate net asset classes, 
depending on the existence and type of donor-imposed restrictions. 

(i) Distributions to Member Institutions 
UNCF accrues expenses due to member institutions and, occasionally, nonmember institutions of 
higher education up to the amount by which support and collections of pledges, including the values 
attributed to gifts-in-kind, exceed program, fundraising, and administrative expenses. Regular 
distributions and other distributions, such as joint campaigns and designated gifts, are made on an 
ongoing basis. 

(j) Net Assets – Without Donor Restrictions 
Net assets without donor restrictions consist of undesignated and board-designated net assets and 
include gifts, grants, investment income, or other resources where donors have not specified any 
purpose for which such resources are to be used. Undesignated net assets are funds currently 
available to support UNCF's daily operations. Board-designated net assets consist of funds without 
restriction designated by the Board of Directors for member distribution and operating reserves. 

(k) Net Assets – With Donor Restrictions 
Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed, time and/or 
purpose restrictions. The organization is permitted to use or expend the donated assets in accordance 
with donor restrictions. When a time and/or purpose restriction expires or is met, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the accompanying 
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

The net assets with donor restrictions category include gifts and bequests where donors have 
stipulated that the principal be maintained permanently by UNCF. These gifts are invested by UNCF's 
Management. Generally, no permanent restrictions have been placed on UNCF's investment earnings. 
However, donors specify most of the earnings to support scholarships or program development. Net 
gains with no permanent restrictions and that are not specified by the donors to support scholarships or 
program development may be used for general purposes at the discretion of the Board of Directors. 
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FASB ASC Topic 958-205, Reporting Endowment Funds, provides guidance on the net asset 
classification of donor-restricted endowment funds for a not-for-profit organization that is subject to an 
enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). UNCF is 
subject to the State of New York's UPMIFA and has adopted FASB ASC Topic 958-205, as required. 
UNCF has interpreted the State of New York's UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the fair value of 
the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor 
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, UNCF classifies as net assets with donor 
restrictions held in perpetuity (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment and 
(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment. 

The associated gains and income on donor-restricted endowment funds are classified as net assets 
with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by UNCF in a manner 
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, UNCF 
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted 
endowment funds: 

(1) The duration and preservation of UNCF. 

(2) The purposes for which UNCF will appropriate funds from the donor-restricted endowment fund. 

(3) General economic conditions. 

(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation. 

(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments. 

(6) Other resources of UNCF. 

(7) The investment policies of UNCF. 

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds 
may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires UNCF to retain as a fund of perpetual 
duration. UNCF had no such deficits on March 31, 2023, and 2022. 

(l) Endowment Investment and Spending Policies 
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that UNCF must hold in perpetuity or 
for a donor-specified period. UNCF has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment 
assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its 
endowments. 

Preservation of capital is foremost, followed by preservation of purchasing power and growth of assets. 
The investment policy establishes an achievable return objective through the diversification of asset 
classes. The current long-term return objective is to attain an average annual real return (net of 
investment and management fees) of 5% above the Consumer Price Index (CPI). It is recognized that 
the real return objective will be difficult to attain in every period, but it should be attainable over the 
long-term. To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, UNCF relies on a total return strategy 
designed to deliver superior risk-adjusted returns in which investment returns are achieved through 
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both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). UNCF 
targets a diversified asset allocation that emphasizes equity-based investments more to achieve its 
long-term return objectives within prudent risk parameters. 

UNCF's fiscal policy governs using resources in the various endowed funds for program expenses and 
administrative costs. Endowment funds are used for specified purposes or over the specified time 
period designated by the donors. The amount of endowment funds available for use is based on the 
realized and unrealized cumulative investment income gains and losses in excess of the respective 
endowment's principal balance multiplied by 5% of the average 3-year market value. With respect to 
any endowment restrictions, these funds are used to support new initiatives or new one-time or short-
term (2–3 years) activities, subject to the submission of a business plan that has been reviewed and 
endorsed by executive Management and approved by UNCF's Board of Directors. Once approval of an 
initiative or activity is obtained from the Board of Directors, the use of the endowment funds is 
incorporated into the operating budget process, and distributions are based on the budgeted amounts. 

(m) Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized during the period in which it is earned. Revenue received in advance and not 
yet earned is deferred to the applicable period. Deferred revenue amounted to $7,571,107 and 
$8,210,781 as of the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022. 

(n) Donated Services 
The value of certain services provided to and/or paid on behalf of UNCF's programs that are 
susceptible to objective measurement or valuation has been reflected in the financial statements (see 
note 17). Additionally, many volunteers have donated significant time to UNCF's program services and 
fundraising campaigns. Although the value of these services is significant, UNCF does not record such 
value in its financial statements since the criteria for recognition are not met in accordance with 
FASB ASC Topic 958-605-25, Not-For-Profit Entities – Revenue Recognition. 

(o) Expenses 
UNCF recognizes expenses during the period in which they are incurred. Expenses paid in advance 
and not yet incurred are deferred to the applicable period. 

(p) Functional Allocation of Expenses 
The costs of providing various programs and supporting services have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the accompanying statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses 
presents expenses by function and natural classification. Certain categories of expenses are 
attributable to both program services and supporting activities. Therefore, these expenses require 
allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The allocated expenses include 
occupancy, salaries and benefits, and cost of technology, which are allocated based on 
square-footage, estimates of time and effort, and direct consumption methodology, respectively. 
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(q) Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(r) Financial Instruments and Credit Risk 
Financial instruments which potentially subject UNCF to concentrations of credit risk consist principally 
of investments, pledges receivable, and certain revenue sources. UNCF places its investments at 
creditworthy financial institutions. By policy, UNCF's approach has been to utilize Tier 1 banks, which 
are subject to greater regulatory scrutiny, possess ample capital, and have advanced risk management 
capabilities to minimize risks caused by concentration. Credit risk with respect to pledges receivable is 
generally limited, except as follows, because UNCF deals with a large number of donors and has 
maintained long-term relationships with these donors. Approximately 80% of pledges receivable for the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, were from four major donors. 

As of March 31, 2023, UNCF had no other significant concentration of credit risk, except as described 
in note 4. 

(s) Fair Value Measurements 
UNCF follows FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which requires 
additional footnote disclosures about the inputs used to develop the measurements of fair value and 
the effect of certain measurements reported in the accompanying statements of activities and as 
described in note 9. 

(t) Recent Accounting Pronouncements  
In February 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), 
as amended, which, along with related amendments, replaced existing capital and operating lease 
reporting and disclosure requirements. ASU No. 2016-02 requires, among other changes to the lease 
accounting guidance, lessees to recognize most leases on the statement of financial position through 
both a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability and additional qualitative and quantitative 
disclosures. ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for UNCF in fiscal year 2023. UNCF has adopted this ASU 
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023. The adoption of this standard did not materially impact 
the financial statements of UNCF. 

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-07, Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit 
Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958). This ASU increases 
transparency around contributed nonfinancial assets (also known as "gifts-in-kind") received by not-for-
profit organizations, including transparency on how those assets are used and how they are valued. It 
also addresses the presentation and disclosure of contributed nonfinancial assets. UNCF has adopted 
this ASU as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023. The adoption of this standard did not materially 
impact the financial statements of UNCF. 
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(u) Summarized Financial Information for 2022 
The accompanying financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information 
in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with UNCF's financial statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2022, from which the summarized information was derived. 

(v) Reclassifications 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. 

(3) Income Taxes 
UNCF is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, except 
on net income derived from unrelated business activities. UNCF has analyzed its unrelated business 
activities for March 31, 2023 and 2022 and determined that no significant income taxes are due for such 
activities. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying financial 
statements. Management reviews its tax position under applicable laws and has determined that there are 
no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition in the financial statements. UNCF files IRS Form 
990 annually and is still open to examination by taxing authorities for fiscal year 2018 and later. 

(4) Uninsured Cash Balances 
UNCF places its cash and cash equivalents with high-credit quality financial institutions that are federally 
insured for $250,000 and $500,000 under the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation Act (FDICA) and 
the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), respectively. Amounts held in excess of the FDICA 
limits were $42,087,431 and $143,401,434 on March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Amounts above the 
SIPC limits were $40,761,146 and $142,344,835 on March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. UNCF has not 
experienced losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash 
and cash equivalents. 

(5) Short-Term Investments 
Short-term investments are held, invested, and managed by UNCF and financial institutions, subject to 
guidelines established by UNCF, GMSP, and its respective Investment Committees. Short-term 
investments, at fair value, consist of the following at March 31: 

2023
UNCF GMSP

Money market funds $ 48,783,867  60,308,295  
Certificates of deposit, commercial paper, and other short-term

investments 84,788,208  —  

Total short-term investments $ 133,572,075  60,308,295  
 



UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 15 (Continued) 

2022
UNCF GMSP

Money market funds $ 13,138,428  62,751,058  
Certificates of deposit, commercial paper, and other short-term

investments 680,856  —  

Total short-term investments $ 13,819,284  62,751,058  

 

(6) Pledges Receivable 
Pledges receivable are unconditional promises to pay certain amounts and consist of the following at 
March 31: 

2023 2022

Unconditional pledges receivable before unamortized discount
and allowance for uncollectible amounts $ 263,832,371  91,118,613  

Less:
Unamortized discount (15,274,715) (319,100) 
Allowance for uncollectible amounts (7,488,349) (7,488,345) 

Net unconditional pledges receivable $ 241,069,307  83,311,168  
 

Management evaluates the collectability of its receivables and records an allowance for estimated 
uncollectible amounts. Pledges due beyond one year were discounted at an annual rate ranging from 
0.07% to 4.73%. The discount will be recognized as contributions and gifts revenue in fiscal years 2024 
through 2030, as the discount is amortized using an effective yield over the duration of the contributions. 

The expected future cash receipts for UNCF are as follows: 

2023 2022

Amounts due in:
Less than one year $ 72,620,038  62,633,146  
One to five years 191,212,333  28,485,467  

Pledges receivable before discount and allowance $ 263,832,371  91,118,613  
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(7) Long-Term Investments 
Investments held for long-term purposes and at fair value consist of the following at March 31: 

2023 2022

Fixed income $ 4,131,783  9,735,001  
U.S. and global equities 97,172,606  81,610,081  
Cash equivalents 5,046,126  7,456,129  
Hedge funds 45,571,605  39,324,071  
Designated fixed income 45,989,385  38,059,977  
Private equities 54,857,608  54,647,608  

Total long-term investments $ 252,769,113  230,832,867  
 

Investments held for long-term purposes include investments for which the Board of Directors and member 
institutions have earmarked the proceeds from liquidating such investments to be utilized primarily for 
distribution equalization in low-income years and endowment funds for which donors have stipulated that 
the principal remain intact. 

Investments in various funds held in fixed income, U.S. and global equities, hedge funds, designated fixed 
income and private equities are valued based on UNCF's share of net assets in the underlying investment 
portfolios. The respective investment managers value the underlying investment portfolios at quoted market 
prices or estimated fair values for positions for which there is a limited market. Management reviews and 
evaluates the values provided by the fund managers and general partners and agrees with the valuation 
methods and assumptions used in determining the fair value of these alternative investments. 

During fiscal year 2016, UNCF received a restricted contribution in the form of private stock valued at 
$29,967,200. This contribution is included in investments valued using NAV as a practical expedient (see 
note 9), along with UNCF's other holdings of illiquid private equities. The fair value of the stock at March 31, 
2023 and 2022 was $30,151,918 and $31,947,186, respectively. 
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(8) GMSP Long-Term Investments 
Investments in this portfolio are all fixed-income securities, are held for long-term purposes and at fair 
value, and are composed of the following at March 31: 

2023 2022

U.S. government securities $ 59,451,294  70,077,128  
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 317,733  393,276  
Asset-backed securities 50,851  80,474  
Corporate debt securities 19,894,925  38,382,235  
Cash equivalents 1,511,856  3,798,175  

Total investments held for long-term purposes 81,226,659  112,731,288  

(Payable) for unsettled investment trades (14,320) (13,750) 

Total GMSP investments held for long-term
purposes – net of receivable $ 81,212,339  112,717,538  

 

As a dedicated defeasance portfolio, these securities have definite stated maturities and predictable cash 
flows. GMSP long-term investments are accounted for based on the trade date. Consequently, there were 
$14,320 and $13,750 payable for unsettled trades at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, respectively. 
These investment payables are reported separately in the accompanying statements of financial position. 

(9) Fair Value Measurements 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). UNCF utilizes market data or 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about 
risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, 
market corroborated, or generally unobservable. UNCF primarily applies the market approach for recurring 
fair value measurements and endeavors to utilize the best available information. Accordingly, UNCF utilizes 
valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable 
inputs. 

UNCF is able to classify fair value balances based on the observability of those inputs. UNCF's 
assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurements requires judgment and 
may affect the valuation of fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value 
hierarchy levels. Also, the time between inception and performance of the contract may affect the fair 
value. The determination of fair value may, therefore, affect the timing of recognition of revenues and 
change in net assets. 
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FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to 
measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of fair 
value hierarchy are as follows: 

Level 1 Inputs: Valuation based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that a 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date, and where transactions occur with 
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

Level 2 Inputs: Valuation based on inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Inputs include quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that 
are not active, that is, markets in which there are few transactions, prices are not current, or prices vary 
substantially over time. 

Level 3 Inputs: Valuation based on inputs that are unobservable for an asset or liability and shall be used 
to measure fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations 
in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. This input, 
therefore, reflects UNCF's and other independent third parties if and where available, assumptions about 
what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information 
available in the circumstances. This classification does not imply a lack of liquidity in the investment. UNCF 
has a target allocation of approximately 22% nonmarketable alternative investments (private equity). 
Further, 56% and 46% of the UNCF long-term portfolio have monthly or better liquidity, while approximately 
22% and 30% of this portfolio has quarterly liquidity via its marketable alternative investments held at 
March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. UNCF carefully monitors these positions by conducting periodic 
asset allocation and performance reviews. There were no level 3 investments noted in the current year.  

All short-term investments (see note 5) are classified as Level 1 investments under the FASB ASC 
Topic 820 hierarchy. 

The following tables present UNCF's long-term investments (see note 7) that are measured at fair value on 
a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023 and 2022: 

2023
Level 1 NAV Totals

Investments:
U.S. and global equities $ 21,794,387  —  21,794,387  
Designated fixed income 45,989,385  —  45,989,385  
Cash equivalents 5,046,126  —  5,046,126  
Investments valued using

NAV as a practical
expedient —  179,939,215  179,939,215  

Total $ 72,829,898  179,939,215  252,769,113  
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2022
Level 1 NAV Totals

Investments:
U.S. and global equities $ 8,447,941  —  8,447,941  
Designated fixed income 38,059,976  —  38,059,976  
Cash equivalents 7,456,128  —  7,456,128  
Investments valued using

NAV as a practical
expedient —  176,868,822  176,868,822  

Total $ 53,964,045  176,868,822  230,832,867  
 

The following table presents the GMSP's long-term investments (see note 8) that are measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023 and 2022: 

2023
Level 1 Level 2 Totals

Investments:
U.S. government securities $ 59,451,294  —  59,451,294  
Commercial mortgage backed securities —  317,733  317,733  
Asset-backed securities —  50,851  50,851  
Corporate debt securities 19,894,925  —  19,894,925  
Cash equivalents 1,511,856  —  1,511,856  

Total $ 80,858,075  368,584  81,226,659  

 

2022
Level 1 Level 2 Totals

Investments:
U.S. government securities $ 70,077,128  —  70,077,128  
Commercial mortgagebacked securities —  393,276  393,276  
Asset-backed securities —  80,474  80,474  
Corporate debt securities 38,382,235  —  38,382,235  
Cash equivalents 3,798,175  —  3,798,175  

Total $ 112,257,538  473,750  112,731,288  
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instrument for which it is practicable to estimate that value: 

Equities – UNCF's holdings of equity securities refer to both U.S. and Global Equities and thus represent 
the publicly listed shares on regulated exchanges of various companies or commingled investment funds 
holding these types of securities. As publicly listed securities, prices and thus valuations are readily 
available via regular trading between specialists, market makers and multiple principals and agents. Bid 
and offer quotes are continuously available. The commingled investment funds are valued using net asset 
value. 

Fixed Income – Fixed Income and designated fixed income securities are comprised of U.S. and global 
government bills, notes and bonds (including agency issues, Treasury Inflation Protection Securities and 
various zero-coupon issues) and also various types of corporate bonds (including asset-backed securities, 
both residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities and debentures) or commingled investment 
funds holding these types of securities. Some of the designated fixed-income securities are readily 
determinable marketable securities whose quoted prices are available in the open market. The remaining 
fixed-income securities are based on net asset values as a practical expedient for fair value. 

Alternative Investments – UNCF's alternative investments fall into one of two categories – Private Equity 
and Hedge Funds. Individual holdings within the alternative investments may include investments in both 
nonmarketable (unlisted) and marketable (listed, publicly traded) securities. UNCF's alternative investments 
are held in various classes of investments. Given the absence of market quotations for some of these 
investments, fair value is estimated using net asset value as a practical expedient. 

While these financial instruments contain varying degrees of risk, UNCF's exposure with respect to each 
such investment is limited to its carrying amount (fair value as described above) in each investment. The 
financial statements of the investees are audited annually by nationally recognized independent auditors. In 
addition, UNCF has implemented a system whereby its own master custodian performs monthly and/or 
quarterly reconciliations with all of its outside managers and a comprehensive annual review that is timed 
to coincide with UNCF's fiscal year-end. 

Cash Equivalents – Cash Equivalents are invested in traditional money market funds that target a stable, 
daily net asset value and are regulated under the Investment Company Act 1940. These conventional 
money market funds are restricted to invest only in those securities permissible under Rule 2a-7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940 and typically refer to the high-quality rated debt instruments of various 
issuers that have maturities of 3-months or less, with a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less and 
with no more than 5% in any one issuer. These money market instruments include Treasury Bills, 
Certificates of Deposit, commercial paper, repurchase agreements and other acceptable short-term debt 
instruments. 
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Investment Derivatives – UNCF's investment managers may employ derivatives to manage market risks, 
arbitrage mispricing of securities, or replicate long or short positions cost-effectively. In no instance are 
derivatives used to speculate or leverage positions. All derivative investments are carried at fair value and 
are reported in investments on the statement of financial position. The derivatives are held with two 
different counterparties and are subject to master netting agreements. The master netting agreements 
allow UNCF to offset net positions by counterparty and available collateral held. Financial futures contracts 
have a fair value of $(4,821,305) and $(6,758,125) at March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The fair 
value for these contracts is reported as GMSP long-term investments. 

Methodology and Process 

UNCF's Management and UNCF's investment advisor, both working in conjunction, (i) perform ongoing due 
diligence on outside managers, including, among other things, vetting, monitoring developments involving 
operations, firewalls, and best practices, and compliance oversight; (ii) ensures proper benchmarking 
where applicable against certain indexes (e.g., MSCI EAFE, MSCI Emerging Markets, Barclays Aggregate 
Bond Index, HFR, S&P 500 Index, and Dow Jones Industrial Average, among others); and (iii) reports on 
changes in overall market conditions. The investment advisor and UNCF Management also have regular 
calls with the Management of the outside fund managers, conduct periodic in-person and on-site meetings, 
and conduct frequent and ad hoc meetings with the investment committee, as necessary. 

UNCF's Management and the investment advisor also analyze and report to the investment committee on 
the portfolios' overall performance and compliance. Finally, the UNCF Management and the advisor make 
regular proactive recommendations for the investment committee to consider to improve the general 
Management and performance of the portfolio. 

The following table summarizes UNCF's investments with a reported NAV as of March 31, 2023: 

Redemption
Redemption notice

Investment type Fair value frequency period (days)

U.S. and global equities $ 75,378,219  Daily, monthly, quarterly 1–60 days
Hedge funds 45,571,605  Monthly, quarterly, annually 8–95 days
Fixed income 4,131,783  Daily, quarterly, annually 10–90 days
Private equities 54,857,608  N/A N/A

$ 179,939,215  
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The following table summarizes UNCF's investments with a reported NAV as of March 31, 2022: 

Redemption
Redemption notice

Investment type Fair value frequency period (days)

U.S. and global equities $ 73,162,140  Daily, monthly, quarterly 1–60 days
Hedge funds 39,324,072  Monthly, quarterly, annually 8–95 days
Fixed income 9,735,001  Daily, quarterly, annually 10–90 days
Private equities 54,647,609  N/A N/A

$ 176,868,822  

 

UNCF's investments in U.S. and global equities, and fixed-income asset classes, which are recorded at net 
asset value, and represent investments in various commingled investment funds and other marketable 
securities. 

UNCF's investments in hedge funds seek to provide investors with maximum capital appreciation while 
limiting downside risk. It does so by investing with a diversified group of hedge funds and fund-of-funds. 
Where hedge funds take direct positions, fund-of-funds invest with underlying sub-managers that employ 
various hedging strategies, typically by simultaneously investing in long and short positions in various 
securities. These funds may utilize leverage to magnify the effects of securities selection, especially price 
movements. Additionally, most of UNCF's hedge fund positions were out of the mandatory lock-up periods. 

UNCF's investments in private equities seek to provide investors with reasonable returns compared to 
comparable market indexes utilizing a pool of nonmarketable private equity funds. The funds have different 
lock-up structures, leading to varying withdrawal restrictions or possible capital redemptions. The typical 
cycle provides for an initial investment period usually ranging anywhere from 1-5 years, followed by a 
growth and management phase that typically runs anywhere from 2-10 years or longer. Over this period, 
capital is periodically called and distributed according to the realization/distribution of investment earnings 
and/or returns. 

UNCF does not intend to sell any funds at an amount different from the net asset value per share at 
March 31, 2023 and 2022. Outstanding funding commitments for nonmarketable alternative investments, 
based on the terms of the underlying investment agreements, amounted to $14,762,150 and $13,303,926 
as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
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(10) Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment utilized at national headquarters and regional field offices are summarized as 
follows: 

2023 2022

Land $ 6,350,000  6,350,000  
Building and improvements 23,294,701  23,294,701  
Furniture and fixtures 950,755  950,755  
Computers and equipment 3,441,363  3,441,363  
Capital Project 4,413,587  848,800  

Total property and equipment 38,450,406  34,885,619  

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (10,621,184) (10,025,532) 

$ 27,829,222  24,860,087  
 

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 were 
$595,651 and $861,838, respectively. 

(11) Collections Acquired 
UNCF's collection items amounting to $6,929,250 consisted of donated works of art received from the 
Estate of Benny Andrews Foundation, Inc. An independent appraisal was used to measure the fair value at 
the date of the gift. Following the donor's intent through March 31, 2021, UNCF distributed $5,515,000 of 
this artwork to member colleges and other entities. As of March 31, 2023, UNCF held the remaining 
$1,414,250 of this collection within a secured environment for future planned distribution. 

(12) Gates Millennium Scholars Program 
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, UNCF received a grant from the Bill and Melinda Gates 
Foundation (the Foundation) for $1 billion over 20 years or approximately $50,000,000 per year to 
administer the GMSP. 

The grant aims to provide scholarships, fellowships, and leadership opportunities for approximately 20,000 
outstanding low-income African-American, Native-American, Hispanic-American, and Asian-American 
students to attend the undergraduate and graduate educational institutions of their choice. This grant is 
conditioned on UNCF's successful annual administration of the GMSP as determined by the administration 
agreement and the Foundation. 

During the fiscal year that ended March 31, 2015, the Gates Foundation asked UNCF, in its role as GMSP 
Administrator, to present a ramp-down plan for the program projecting student enrollment and scholarship 
and administrative expenditures through the program's termination in the spring of 2029. Working 
collaboratively with the GMSP partner organizations and UNCF's leadership, the GMSP staff submitted the 
final plan to the Foundation in February 2017. As of March 31, 2023 and 2022, the plan accepted by the 
Foundation anticipates $51,760,202 and $78,177,019 in scholarship expenses and $16,384,935 and 
$21,430,827 in administrative expenses, respectively. 
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In May 2019, the original grant agreement between the Foundation and UNCF to administer the 
GMSP was amended and restated. The revised agreement kept the purpose of the original grant and 
modified the reporting schedule and due dates and added a payment schedule for the return of terminal 
surplus funds. UNCF agreed to return a portion of the anticipated terminal surplus funds of $39 million over 
five years. The funds are to be paid to the Foundation in September of each year as follows: $5 million in 
2020, $8 million in 2021, $10 million in 2022, $10 million in 2023, and $6 million in 2024, with any 
remaining surplus at the terminus of the program in 2029. As of March 31, 2023, three installment 
payments totaling $23 million were paid as scheduled, and the remaining $16 million was accrued in the 
statement of financial position to be paid as they become due. 

GMSP funds are invested and held in separate investment accounts by UNCF, and all investment gains, 
losses, interest, and dividends earned are restricted for the grant (see notes 8 and 9). 

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 958-605-25, revenue recognition is based on the 
unconditional/conditional promise to give. The restated grant agreement requires UNCF to abide by 
specific performance metrics. If performance metrics are not met, the grant agreement may be terminated, 
and any unspent funds, including the accumulated returns on invested assets, will be returned to the 
Foundation. 

In addition, the agreement also outlines general conditions that stipulate (i) in the event of a modification, 
enlargement, frustration or the impossibility of achieving the purposes of the grant agreement and/or 
(ii) UNCF's continued failure to perform any of its duties under the restated grant agreement and/or 
(iii) UNCF's failure to submit an acceptable annual budget and/or (iv) a significant leadership or other 
material change that may adversely threaten the administration and success of the GMSP; the Foundation 
has the discretion to cancel the grant agreement, suspend any further payments outstanding under the 
grant agreement, and/or require that any portion of the funds, including the accumulated returns on 
invested assets, that were distributed but unexpended to be repaid or transferred to another administrator. 

Due to the conditions placed in the restated grant agreement, the funding was treated as a conditional 
promise to give. Therefore, the funding received was not recorded as revenue in the year received but as a 
liability (refundable advances from a donor), with revenue being recognized in the year when the conditions 
are met. Returns on the GMSP investments are recognized as revenue and an increase in temporarily 
restricted net assets when the underlying investments generate such returns. As of March 31, 2017, all 
relevant conditions placed on the grant agreement had been met, or Management determined that it was 
remote that they would not be met, and therefore all amounts received from the Foundation had been 
recognized as revenue. 

(13) Line of Credit 
UNCF established a revolving line of credit (LOC) for a maximum amount of $4,000,000 with Investors 
Bank, which became Citizens Bank in February of 2023 with a yearly renewable cycle, subject to no 
material changes in UNCF's financial condition. Amendment No. 4 of the LOC expired on the maturity date 
of October 31, 2021. The LOC was renewed on October 28, 2021, as Amendment No. 5 under the 
reestablished agreement, with a maturity date of October 31, 2023. There were no borrowings against the 
line of credit at March 31, 2023, and 2022. 
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The line of credit arrangement has restrictive covenants. At the end of each fiscal year, UNCF must 
maintain unrestricted and temporarily restricted cash plus investments, excluding assets designated for the 
GMSP to fund long-term debt ratio of 1.25x. In addition, there are certain financial reporting covenants that 
UNCF must comply with. UNCF was in compliance with its financial covenants as of March 31, 2023, and 
2022. 

(14) Bonds Payable 
(a) Series 2010 Bonds 

On June 14, 2010, UNCF signed a Purchase and Sale Agreement to acquire approximately 50,000 
square feet of commercial condominium units in a building to be constructed to relocate its 
headquarters. The total net acquisition cost was expected to be $28,965,000. The acquisition and 
build-out of the space have been financed through the issuance of $26,000,000 in tax-exempt bonds 
(Series 2010 Bonds) and a contribution of approximately $2,900,000 drawn from UNCF's long-term 
investment fund. 

These tax-exempt bonds were issued on December 23, 2010, and bear interest at a fixed percentage 
rate between 5% and 6.875%, with maturities ranging from one to thirty years. 

As provided by the Indenture Trust, UNCF exercised the option of defeasance on the Series 2010 
Bonds. On August 6, 2015, $31,565,000 of the District of Columbia special obligation bonds 
(Series 2015 Bonds) with an interest rate of 3.61% were issued to advance refund of $25,195,000 of 
the Series 2010 outstanding bonds. The net proceeds of $30,931,769 (after payment of $633,231 in 
underwriting fees and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those 
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future bond 
debt service payments through July 1, 2020. As a result, the bonds are defeased and the liability for 
those bonds and related unamortized deferred financing costs have been removed from the financial 
statements. 

(b) Series 2015 Bonds 
The Series 2015 Bonds are special obligations of the District of Columbia (the District), the principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, and interest on which are payable solely from the revenues received under 
the Loan Agreement for the Series 2015 Bonds between the District and UNCF (Loan Agreement) and, 
to the extent provided in the Indenture Trust, dated August 1, 2015, between the District and the 
Trustee, pursuant to which the Series 2015 Bonds are currently issued and outstanding. Investors 
Bank purchased the Series 2015 Bonds under and upon the terms and conditions outlined in the Bond 
Purchase and Continuing Covenants Agreement as of August 6, 2015, between Investors Bank and 
UNCF. Investors Bank was acquired by Citizens Bank in FY2023. However, this acquisition did not 
affect the terms and conditions of the original agreement. Actual interest expenses incurred in 2023 
amounted to $943,221 and are included in the accompanying statements of activities.  

To evidence and secure its obligations under the Loan Agreement, UNCF has executed a promissory 
note (Series 2015 Note) in the principal amount of $31,565,000. 

Commencing September 1, 2015, principal and interest payments are due monthly, with all outstanding 
amounts related to the 2015 Series Note due on August 1, 2040. The Series 2015 Note is an 
unconditional general obligation of UNCF. 
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At March 31, 2023, the total amounts outstanding on the Series 2015 Bonds were as follows: 

Year ending March 31:
2024 $ 1,035,000  
2025 1,080,000  
2026 1,120,000  
2027 1,160,000  
2028 1,200,000  
Thereafter 19,195,000  
Deferred financing cost (455,034) 

$ 24,334,966  

 

(c) Restrictive Covenants 
UNCF must maintain a liquidity ratio of 1.25 to 1. Compliance will be based solely on the assets of 
UNCF, exclusive of the GMSP. In addition, there are also certain financial reporting covenants that 
UNCF must comply with. UNCF complied with all of its financial covenants as of March 31, 2023 and 
2022. 

(d) Deferred Financing Costs 
UNCF's bond financing costs for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, such as underwriter fees, 
legal fees, and other direct expenses, amounted to $455,034 and $483,474, respectively, and are 
included in the accompanying statements of financial position. These costs are amortized using the 
straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method over the maturity of the 
respective debt. Amortization expenses amounted to $28,440 for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 
2022. 

(15) Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 
Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the unspent portion of contributions and gifts received by 
UNCF, which have been restricted by the donor to be used for the purposes summarized below: 

2023 2022

Scholarships and special projects $ 488,229,583  289,587,187  
Perpetual in nature 110,124,497  105,565,468  
GMSP 122,178,102  149,085,687  

$ 720,532,182  544,238,342  
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Net assets with donor restrictions were released from restrictions for the following purposes: 

2023 2022

Scholarships and special projects $ 95,535,126  106,184,715  
GMSP 27,106,499  36,976,337  

$ 122,641,625  143,161,052  
 

(16) Endowment Net Asset Classifications 
UNCF's endowments consist of 186 programs established for the purpose of funding scholarships. Net 
assets associated with the endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended March 31, 2023, are as follows: 

Without
donor

restrictions With donor restrictions
Board Purpose Perpetual in

designated restricted nature Total

Net assets, beginning of year $ 6,773,699  43,121,181  105,565,468  155,460,348  

Investment return:
Investment income 151,823  576,431  —  728,254  
Net realized and unrealized

losses (1,083,312) (3,841,066) —  (4,924,378) 

Total investment
losses (931,489) (3,264,635) —  (4,196,124) 

Contributions 3,500,000  —  4,559,029  8,059,029  
Transfers —  —  —  —  
Appropriation of endowment

income for expenditure (571,227) (4,897,727) —  (5,468,954) 

Net assets, end of year $ 8,770,983  34,958,819  110,124,497  153,854,299  
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Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended March 31, 2022, are as follows: 

Without
donor

restrictions With donor restrictions
Board Purpose Perpetual in

designated restricted nature Total

Net assets, beginning of year $ 5,318,917  39,892,650  79,394,539  124,606,106  

Investment return:
Investment income 6,653  27,182  —  33,835  
Net realized and unrealized

gains 2,040,901  7,962,655  —  10,003,556  

Total investment
return 2,047,554  7,989,837  —  10,037,391  

Contributions —  —  25,970,929  25,970,929  
Transfers —  —  200,000  200,000  
Appropriation of endowment

income for expenditure (592,772) (4,761,306) —  (5,354,078) 

Net assets, end of year $ 6,773,699  43,121,181  105,565,468  155,460,348  

 

(17) Gifts-In-Kind and Donated Services 
UNCF has received renewable one-year subscriptions to Bloomberg Terminal services as donations for its 
member institutions. Currently, eight of these institutions are utilizing the services. The market value of 
these services is determined by Bloomberg annually. As of March 31, 2023, and 2022, the fair value of 
these specialized services was reflected in the statement of activities as $1,019,343 and $981,974, 
respectively.  

(18) Other Fundraising Activities 
(a) Special Events 

UNCF raised $18,540,415 and $15,591,941 in contributions from special fundraising events and 
incurred related direct expenses of $6,635,904 and $3,614,017 in fiscal years 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. These amounts are reported in the accompanying statements of activities as contributions 
and gifts, net of the related direct expenses. 

(b) Direct Mail 
UNCF raised $13,616,053 and $15,851,637 in contributions through its direct mail campaigns and 
incurred related direct expenses of $4,810,446 and $4,467,222 in fiscal years 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. 
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(19) Retirement Plans 
All full-- and part-time employees are eligible to participate in the retirement plan on the first day of 
employment. After completing one year of service, employees are eligible to receive employer contributions 
into the retirement plan. The plan consists of participant voluntary and contributory tax-deferred annuity 
plans through Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and/or the College Retirement Equities Funds 
(TIAA-CREF). Based on the percentage an employee defers, UNCF makes an additional matching 
contribution of up to 7%. 

UNCF also has supplemental agreements with certain current and past key executives. To meet these 
obligations, UNCF maintains annuity contracts amounting to $2,032,264 and $2,181,856 as of March 31, 
2023 and 2022, respectively, and these are included within other assets in the accompanying statements of 
financial position. The liabilities associated with these agreements amounted to $812,484 and $604,484 as 
of March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included within accrued wages, vacation, and other 
related personnel expenses in the accompanying statements of financial position. UNCF believes it has 
sufficient operating cash to account for any shortfalls between the annuity contracts and the liability owed 
under these agreements. 

UNCF's expense related to the retirement plan and the supplemental agreements was $1,144,017 and 
$1,018,437 for 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

(20) Commitments and Contingencies 
UNCF leases space for its office facilities throughout the United States. One of the offices, amended in 
January 2023, has a term of 7 years. The other offices have remaining lease terms from month-to-month to 
approximately two years. None of the leases meet the requirements to be classified as finance leases, and 
they are, accordingly, accounted for as operating leases. UNCF has determined that it is not reasonably 
certain to exercise any extension options. Accordingly, the period covered by extension options is not 
recognized as part of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. 

The individual lease contracts do not provide information about the rate implicit in the lease, and therefore, 
UNCF has elected to use a risk-free discount rate for all affected leases. UNCF has also elected to use the 
short-term lease practical expedient for all short-term leases. 
 

Lease information as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023 is as follows: 
 

Right-of-use lease assets under operating lease 775,222     

Lease liabilities under the operating lease:
                     Current portion $ 302,994     
                     Long-term portion 489,524     

           Total operating lease liabilities $ 792,518     

$
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Right-of-use lease assets and lease liabilities are recorded in other assets and accounts payable and 
accrued expenses in the statements of financial position, respectively.  

At March 31, 2023, aggregate net minimum annual rental commitments under the noncancelable operating 
leases, having an initial or remaining term of more than one year, are as follows: 

Rental
commitment

Year ending March 31:
2024 $ 325,015  
2025 120,695  
2026 84,909  
2027 87,012  
2028 89,124  
Thereafter 160,846  

Total operating lease 867,601  

Less: present value adjustment (75,083) 

Total lease liabilities $ 792,518  

 

Rent expenses under these leases amounted to $711,894 and $672,960 for the years ended March 31, 
2023, and 2022, respectively. 

Other 

UNCF is a party to various legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of its business. UNCF's 
Management believes that their ultimate disposition will not adversely affect UNCF's financial position or 
the results of its operations. 



UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 31 (Continued) 

(21) Liquidity and Availability of Resources 
UNCF's financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for general 
expenditures are as follows: 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents $ 43,783,759  144,848,181  
Short-term investments 193,880,370  76,570,342  
Long-term investments 333,995,772  343,001,295  
Accrued investment income 2,276,316  682,774  
Receivables, net 241,069,307  83,311,168  
Assets held for supplemental employee benefits, net 576,248  1,009,767  
Assets held for partner organizations, net 321,772  710,957  

Total financial assets, end of year 815,903,544  650,134,484  

Less those unavailable for general expenditure within one year,
due to:

Time restricted pledges due in greater than one year (191,212,333) (28,485,467) 
Perpetual and term endowments and accumulated

earnings, net (145,083,316) (148,686,649) 
Purpose restricted grants, net (371,340,077) (353,017,056) 
Unfunded capital commitments (14,762,150) (13,303,926) 
Distribution commitments to UNCF member institutions (8,858,535) (12,414,602) 
Operating reserve (17,580,453) (16,920,571) 
Member distribution reserve (4,849,654) (4,807,367) 
Return of funds to the Gates Foundation (16,000,000) (26,000,000) 

Total financial assets unavailable for general
expenditures within one year (769,686,518) (603,635,638) 

Total financial assets available for general
expenditures within one year $ 46,217,026  46,498,846  

 

UNCF's current-year revenue adequately covers current-year operating expenditure. UNCF has certain 
donor-restricted assets limited to use, which are available for general expenditure within one year in the 
ordinary course of operations. Accordingly, these assets have been included in the qualitative information 
above. UNCF maintains cash and highly liquid securities sufficient to meet anticipated cash needs for 
operations, capital commitments, and member distributions. 
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As part of the liquidity management plan, the governing Board designated $500,000 of the fiscal year 2023 
operating surplus to the operating reserve, bringing the total operating and member distribution reserves to 
$17.6 million and $4.9 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2023, and $16.9 million and $4.8 million, 
respectively, as of March 1, 2022. These reserves are established with the objective of setting the funds 
aside to be drawn upon in the event of financial distress or an immediate liquidity need resulting from 
circumstances outside of the typical life cycle of converting financial assets to cash or settling financial 
liabilities. UNCF's target for the operating reserve is a total of $40 million which was determined based on 
Management's judgment about the appropriate amount of funds to have set aside in addition to working 
capital. The operating recovery and member distribution reserve balances are held in the cash and cash 
equivalents and long-term investments lines and presented as Board designated net assets without 
restriction on the statements of financial position. 

Additionally, UNCF maintains a $4 million line of credit, as discussed in more detail in Note (13). As of 
March 31, 2023, $4 million remained available on the UNCF's line of credit. 

(22) Related Parties 
UNCF receives contributions from donor organizations with representatives on UNCF's Board of Directors 
and from Board members themselves. UNCF received $11,100,373 and $9,653,468 in contributions from 
such related parties during the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The contributions 
receivable from these related parties were $2,650,847 and $1,217,715 as of March 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively.  

(23) Subsequent Events 
Risks and Uncertainties 

Due to the level of uncertainty related to changes in interest rates, market volatility, and credit risks, it is at 
least reasonably possible that changes in these risks could materially affect the fair value of investments 
reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as of March 31, 2023 and 2022. 

Management has reviewed its outstanding contributions and gifts at March 31, 2023 and does not believe 
that the market conditions will have a material effect on the financial position of UNCF. However, 
Management believes that the diversification of UNCF's invested assets among various asset classes 
should mitigate the impact of dramatic change on any one category. Further, because the values of 
UNCF's individual investments have and will fluctuate in response to changing market conditions, the 
amount of losses recognized in subsequent periods, if any, cannot be determined. These trends may also 
affect donors' ability to fulfill their pledges on time. 

Management's Evaluation 
In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events, Management has evaluated any events or 
transactions occurring after March 31, 2023, the statement of financial position date, through August 11, 
2023, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and noted that except for the above, 
there have been no such events or transactions which would require adjustments to or disclosure in 
UNCF's financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
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